Public Document Pack

CITY PLANS PANEL
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on
Thursday, 24th March, 2022
at 1.30 pm

MEMBERSHIP
Councillors
D Blackburn
K Brooks
C Campbell
P Carlill
D Cohen
R Finnigan
A Garthwaite
C Gruen
G Latty
J McKenna (Chair)
E Nash
P Wadsworth
N Walshaw

Please do not attend the meeting in person if you have symptoms of Covid-19 and please
follow current public health advice to avoid passing the virus ono other people.
Note to observers of the meeting. To remotely observe this meeting, please click on the
‘View the Meeting Recording’ link which will feature on the meeting’s webpage (linked
below) ahead of the meeting. The webcast will become available at the commencement of
the meeting.
https://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=947&MId=11498&Ver=4

Agenda compiled by:
Debbie Oldham
Governance Services
Civic Hall
Tel: 0113 37 88656
Produced on Recycled Paper

AGENDA

Item
No

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
SITE VISIT DETAILS

1

APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS

To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 15.2 of the Access to Information
Rules (in the event of an Appeal the press and
public will be excluded)
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 15.2, written
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before
the meeting)

Item
No
2

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
1

To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, for the reasons
outlined in the report.

2

To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.

3

If so, to formally pass the following
resolution:RESOLVED – That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the
agenda designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:-

3

LATE ITEMS

To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration
(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes)
4

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
To disclose or draw attention to any interests in
accordance with Leeds City Council’s ‘Councillor
Code of Conduct’.

5

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Item
No
6

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
MINUTES - THURSDAY 24 FEBRUARY 2022

9 - 16

To consider and approved the minutes of the
previous meeting held on Thursday, 24th February
2022.
7

APPLICATION NO. 19/02081/FU - PLANNING
APPLICATION FOR RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT AND ANCILLARY FLEXIBLE
COMMERCIAL SPACE (USE CLASS A1, A2, A3,
A4, B1 AND D1) ON LAND AT ELLERBY ROAD
AND EAST STREET, CROSS GREEN, LEEDS

17 100

To consider the report of the Chief Planning Officer
which sets out details of an application which
seeks planning consent for residential
development and ancillary flexible commercial
space (use class A1, A2, A3, A4, B1 and D1) on
land at Ellerby Road and East Street, Cross Green,
Leeds
(Report attached)
8

PREAPP/21/00338 - PRE-APPLICATION
PRESENTATION OF PROPOSED MULTISTOREY RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT ON
LAND BETWEEN WESTGATE AND
CROPPERGATE, LEEDS LS1 4ND
To consider a report by the Chief Planning Officer
which sets out details of a Pre-Application
Presentation for proposed multi-storey residential
development on land between Westgate and
Croppergate, Leeds, LS1 4ND
(Report attached)

101 120

Item
No

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
PREAPP/21/00250 - PRE-APPLICATION FOR
PURPOSE BUILT STUDENT ACCOMMODATION
AND RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AT THE
FORMER YORKSHIRE POST SITE,
WELLINGTON STREET, LEEDS

9

To consider a report by the Chief Planning Officer
which sets out details of a Pre-Application
Presentation for purpose built student
accommodation and residential development at the
former Yorkshire Post site, Wellington Street,
Leeds
(Report attached)
DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

10

To note that the next meeting will take place on
Thursday, 21st April 2022 at 1.30pm in the Civic
Hall, Leeds.
Third Party Recording
Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those not present to see or hear the proceedings either as they take place (or later) and
to enable the reporting of those proceedings. A copy of the recording protocol is available from the contacts named on the front of this
agenda.
Use of Recordings by Third Parties– code of practice
a)
b)

Any published recording should be accompanied by a statement of when and where the recording was made, the context of
the discussion that took place, and a clear identification of the main speakers and their role or title.
Those making recordings must not edit the recording in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or misrepresentation of the
proceedings or comments made by attendees. In particular there should be no internal editing of published extracts;
recordings may start at any point and end at any point but the material between those points must be complete.

121 138

This page is intentionally left blank

Planning Services
To all Members of City Plans Panel

Ninth Floor East
Merrion House
110 Merrion Centre
Leeds LS2 8BB
Contact: Daljit Singh
Tel: 0113 3787971
daljit.singh@leeds.gov.uk
Our ref: City Site Visits
Date: 16.03.2022

Dear Councillor
SITE VISITS – CITY PLANS PANEL – Thursday 24th March 2022
Now that the Government has further removed legal restrictions around social contact it has
been agreed with the Chair of City Plans Panel to undertake site visits on the morning of the
next City Plans Panel meeting.
A 16 seater minibus has been booked for the site visits; however, since local infection rates
are still high and the Council is advocating a precautionary approach, control measures have
been put in place (see below). To check numbers please can Members contact
PlansPanel@leeds.gov.uk as soon as possible if they wish to travel via the minibus.
For those travelling by mini-bus please meet outside the Civic Hall, Portland Crescent
entrance at 9.55am for a prompt start at 10.00am.

Time
10.00 am

Ward
Site
MINIBUS DEPARTS FROM OUTSIDE CIVIC HALL ENTRANCE

10.1510.45am
10.50 11.20am

Little London &
Woodhouse
Little London &
Woodhouse

PREAPP/21/00338 -Proposed residential development at
Skinner Street, Leeds LS1 4ND
PREAPP/21/00250 – Proposed residential development at
former Yorkshire Post site, Wellington Street, Leeds

Please notify PlansPanel@leeds.gov.uk if you will be attending.
Yours sincerely

Daljit Singh
Group Manager
Planning Services

Page 7

Plans Panel Site Visits Risk Assessment; Control Measures and Guidance











Anyone with symptoms of Covid 19 or required to self-isolate in accordance with
the most current guidance must not attend Panel Visits.
Officers who are classified as clinically extremely vulnerable and are at a high risk
of severe illness or who have a number of conditions listed under the moderately
vulnerable category leaving them at greater risk, or in a higher risk groups e.g.
over 60s, BAME staff should only attend Panel visits following a personal risk
assessment
The use of lateral flow testing by participants prior to the visits is encouraged to
help reduce the potential asymptomatic transmission of the Covid-19
Face covering shall be worn on the minibus, and when entering enclosed spaces
on visits.
Hand sanitiser shall be used on boarding and leaving and shall be provided at the
minibus entry/exit point.
Travellers on the minibus shall sit on separate rows wherever possible.
Time spent on the minibus will be minimised e.g. no detailed discussions regarding
sites/proposals whilst parked up.
The minibus will be well ventilated / windows opened (weather permitting).
Interactions on site shall be conducted in a Covid-safe manner, respecting any
anxieties of participants.

Page 8

Agenda Item 6
CITY PLANS PANEL
THURSDAY, 24TH FEBRUARY, 2022
PRESENT:

Councillor J McKenna in the Chair
Councillors D Blackburn, K Brooks,
P Carlill, D Cohen, A Garthwaite, C Gruen,
G Latty, E Nash, P Wadsworth and
N Walshaw

SITE VISITS

114

Members site visits was held in connection with the following:
PREAPP/21/00379 – Residential development, 87-92 Kirkstall Road, leeds,
LS3 1HS and PREAPP/21/00324 -Proposed mixed use development on land
south of Sweet Street, Holbeck, Leeds LS11 9BX and was attended by the
following Councillors: D Blackburn, A Garthwaite, C Gruen, G Latty and
J Mckenna,
Chair's Opening Comments
The Chair announced the retirement of John Grieve, Senior Governance
Officer within Democratic Services.
In paying tribute, the Chair said John had worked for the Council in excess of
40 years, many of those years servicing the various planning committees and
dealing with some of the most significant planning applications for the city, the
Leeds Bradford Airport application being one of the most recent examples.
Other Members joined the Chair in sharing their own experiences in working
with John, his knowledge, calm manner and willingness to assist was
constantly referred to.
On behalf of the Chief Planning Officer, the Head of Development
Management , also acknowledged the work carried out by John, suggesting
his experience and helpful manner would be greatly missed by the service.

115

Members and Officers Joined the Chair in expressing their thanks and best
wishes to John in his future retirement.
Appeals Against Refusal of Inspection of Documents

116

There were no appeals against refusal of inspection of documents.
Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of Press and Public

117

There were no items which required the exclusion of the press or public.
Late Items

118

There were no late items of business identified.
Declaration of Interests
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 24th March, 2022

Page 9

119

There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting.
Apologies for Absence

120

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors: C Campbell and R
Finnigan.
Minutes of the Previous Meeting
Members considered the minutes of the previous meeting held on 27 th
January 2022
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meetings held on 27th January 2022 be
approved as a true and correct record

121

122

MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES
There were no issues raised under matters arising.
PREAPP/21/00379 - Pre Application Presentation for demolition of the
existing building and structures and the redevelopment of the site for
residential dwellings (use class C3), flexible commercial space (use
classes E and F1) and associated refuse and plant infrastructure,
landscaping, new public realm and open space at the former Arla Foods
site, 87 - 91 Kirkstall Road, Burley, Leeds, LS3 1HS
The Chief Planning Officer submitted a report which set out details of a
pre-application presentation which sought the demolition of the existing
building and structures and the redevelopment of the site for residential
dwellings (use class C3), flexible commercial space (use classes E and F1)
and associated refuse and plant infrastructure, landscaping, new public realm
and open space at the former Arla Foods site, 87 – 91 Kirkstall Road, Burley,
Leeds 3.
Site photographs and plans were displayed and referred to throughout the
discussion of the application.
The applicant’s representatives addressed the Panel, speaking in detail about
the proposal and highlighted the following:










Site / location / context
Former Arla Foods site on the south side of Kirkstall Road
Commercial units on the northern side of Kirkstall Road, further
commercial units are located to the south-east of the site
To the south of the site is the Leeds-Liverpool Canal
The “L” shaped site is 2.07 hectares (Vacant brown field site) located in
a flood zone area
Demolition of the existing building and structures
The proposal – Development of five residential blocks ranging in height
from 7 to 13 storeys (618 residential units)
Build to rent apartments – 308 x 1 bed (50%), 248 x 2 bed (40%) and
62 x 3 bed (10%)
Commercial units at ground floor level

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 24th March, 2022

Page 10








Materials – Principally constructed in brick with horizontal stone
banding and a lighter brick base. A regular pattern of windows would
feature across each building with deep reveals and a slender slash
glazing design
230 car parking spaces, all spaces intended to be provided with electric
vehicle charging points (30% provided initially)
A single point of vehicular access/egress would be provided on
Kirkstall Road with an “exit only” on Washington Street
Landscaping/ planting strategy, in excess of 100 trees to be planted,
public space, safe play areas all based around a central park
Connectivity – Cycle routes/ Riverside walkway

Members raised the following questions to the developer’s representatives:










From Kirkstall Road the massing of the buildings creates the
impression that the site is enclosed, could consideration be given to
“splitting” the first building to provide some riverside views
As the development was being promoted as family friendly, it was
queried why there are so many 1 bed apartments (50%) when there is
a shortage of family accommodation in this area
The car parking provision, was 230 spaces feasible for this size of
development
The demand for electric vehicles is predicted to increase significantly in
the next 5 years; could consideration be given to providing more
electric vehicle charging points, above the proposed initial 30%
How large were the proposed balconies and could more be offered
(given experiences with Covid-19 and restrictions to the use of Public
Open Space during the Pandemic)
How do people engage with each other in this type of development
“playfulness”
Was a nursery/ creche facility to be included within the development
The proposed public open space provision, would it be accessible to
everyone or for tenants use only.
Councillor E Nash asked if she could be provided with a list of the
proposed tree and hedge species

In responding to the issues raised the developer’s representatives said:





The Architect said the intention was to provide a link through the site,
creating a sequence which draws people through the site to the river
which was approximately 150m away
Members were informed that feedback suggested there was a demand
for 1 bed apartments and a Housing Needs Assessment would be
included within the application
Members were informed that careful consideration had been given to
the car parking provision, the vast majority of journeys being outward
from the city centre for work purposes
The applicant said the level of EV Charging Points was being dictated
by demand. The aspiration to deliver 100% was correct, and the

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 24th March, 2022

Page 11









infrastructure would allow for this, but provision had to be on a
sensible phased basis, allowing technological advances to be taken
into account. In doing so they explained that their current portfolio
developments are showing only a 0.2% take up of EV Charging Points
The Architect said the dimensions of the balcony were 1.8m x 2.5m
and with a wind assessment would be provided as part of the
application, they would look at whether the number of balconies could
be increased
The Applicant said they had a number of years’ experience in
delivering high-level community engagement (since 2014). It was
suggested that it was important to ensure the tenants were engaged
and did not feel isolated. The communal aspects of the development
will be encouraged to be well utilised.
The applicant confirmed that there was provision for flexible mixed-use
space within the development and such facilities such as a creche /
nursery may come forward at a later date
The Applicant confirmed that the public open space would be
accessible to everyone.
The Applicant confirmed that the requested information on tree and
hedge species would be supplied to Councillor E Nash

In offering comments, Members raised the following issues:








The area of Kirkstall should be seen as a residential area, this location
is not the City Centre, more family accommodation should be provided
The majority of Members expressed concern about the lack of family
accommodation and requested if further consideration could be given
to the housing mix in respect of the preferred minimum suggested
threshold targets of policy H4
Could arrangements be made to review Core Strategy Policy H4
Housing Mix
Could the applicant give further consideration to the provision of more
electric vehicle charging points, the demand will be far higher within a
short period of time (Also consider the use of universal plugs)
Could more balconies be provided
The proposed brickwork appears over several stories could become
too bland, more character is required

In offering comments on the officers’ questions in the report:


Members were supportive of the emerging outer layout and scale of the
proposed development. The proposed housing mix was not supported.
It was asked if one of the apartments blocks be considered for family
accommodation only.



Members generally welcomed the emerging elevational design and
proposed material palette

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 24th March, 2022

Page 12



Members considered the proposed level of electric vehicle charge
points to be unacceptable.

The Chair thanked the developers for their attendance and presentation
suggesting that Members were generally supportive of the emerging design,
but further consideration was required around the proposed housing mix and
more consideration was required on the level of electric vehicle charging
points
RESOLVED –
(i)

To note the details contained in the pre-application presentation

(ii)

That the developers be thanked for their attendance and
presentation

(iii)

123

That the Chief Planning Officer be requested to consider and
review the application of Core Strategy Policy H4 (Housing
Mix)
PREAPP/21/00324 - Pre-application presentation for proposed
development comprising residential apartments, commercial (offices
and leisure), hotel and a travel hub on land largely bounded by Sweet
Street, Meadow Road, Jack Lane and Bowling Green Terrace, Leeds
LS11 9BX
The Chief Planning Officer submitted a report which set out details of a
pre-application presentation for proposed development comprising residential
apartments, commercial (offices and leisure), hotel and a travel hub on land
largely bounded by Sweet Street, Meadow Road, Jack Lane and Bowling
Green Terrace, Leeds, LS11 9BX
Site photographs and plans were displayed and referred to throughout the
discussion of the application.
The applicant’s representatives addressed the Panel, speaking in detail about
the proposal and highlighted the following:








Site / location / context
The site area extends to 3.79 hectares
The “City One” site lies within the southern part of the designated City
Centre. It is bounded by Sweet Street to the north, Meadow Road to
the east, Jack Lane to the south and Bowling Green Terrace to the
west.
The south-western corner of the site is 6.0m higher than the north-east
corner. High pressure gas mains run below ground across the northern
fringe and south-east corner of the site resulting in no build zones in
these areas. Trent Street runs east to west across the site providing
access to a large primary substation located towards the centre of the
site.
Meadow Road is the main distributor to the City Centre from the M621

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 24th March, 2022

Page 13












The southern extent of Holbeck Conservation Area is located 120m to
the west at the junction of Sweet Street West and Marshall Street. The
conservation area includes a number of listed buildings.
Major mixed use development scheme
The proposed development seeks the construction of up to 11
buildings ranging in height from 5 - 42 storey’s in height - Residential
apartments (2,200 maximum), commercial (offices and leisure) up to
70,000sqm, hotel (450 beds) and a multi-storey travel hub and /or
basement car parking providing a maximum of 691 car parking spaces;
up to 2,850sqm of ground floor use Class E(a-g) floorspace (with single
retail units limited to 465sqm) with a minimum provision of 1,000sqm of
Use Class E(a-g) floorspace across the development.
New Masterplan
Proposed new network of streets, including new green street
Key constraints: Gas lines and electricity sub-station (Alternative
configuration if sub-station removed)
Landscaping strategy, tree lined public open space, introduction of rain
gardens
Pedestrian priority environment, connectivity and permeability at the
heart of the masterplan
Timescale – Commence latter 2022 with completion of first phase
towards the end of 2025

Members raised the following questions to the developer’s representatives:






This is a large development, possibly up to 4,000 residents, are there
any amenities provided or located nearby: eg doctor’s surgeries,
nurseries and schools
The scale of this development is difficult to grasp. Could the areas of
greenspace be combined to form larger, discrete areas of public realm
rather than linear streets.
Do the large linear buildings and spaces have the potential to cause
wind tunnelling.
Meadow Road filters into the M621, was sufficient planting been
provided to combat particulates from vehicles
In respect of the electricity sub-station, were there any plans to relocate
it, and if it was to be moved, would it be your intention to build on it or
could it be greenspace.

In responding to the issues raised the developer’s representatives said:




The Applicant confirmed that commercial space was available within
the development for such amenities as a doctor’s surgery. In terms of
nearby schools, it was confirmed there were existing schools within the
locality
The Architect said the intention was to create a sense of openness with
some of the streets being 25m in width. There would also be huge
areas created with streets largely being given over to amenity space.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 24th March, 2022

Page 14






The Architect reported that no safety issues had been identified
following wind modelling, the massing of the buildings was deliberately
organised to address wind impact
The Architect said the buildings along Meadow Road would be set
back 10m, there would be a 3m wide planting strip and there would
also be a 3m cycle path, the intention was to provide a series of soft
landscape filters to help combat poor air quality
The applicant confirmed that relocation of the electricity sub-station
was being considered and if it could be removed, the area would be
redeveloped. Responding to a question, what if the sub-station was to
remain, Members were informed the brickwork and door would be
refurbished and then covered with a landscaped screen.

In offering comments, Members raised the following issues:











In general Members welcomed the principal of the development
The majority of Members were of the view that not enough useable
greenspace was being provided relative to the scale of the
development. The proposed linear pieces of greenspace were
“underwhelming” and were not the same and as useable as a green
square
There was more work to be done in terms of design and massing.
Architectural treatment needs to make a contribution to the spaces,
with a variation in building design.
Too many people were being crammed onto a small site
A policy compliant housing mix needs to be provided
This is a large development and needs to cater for all ages with
appropriate facilities, a depth of vision is required
Ideally the electricity sub-station requires removal and turned into
greenspace
Possible wind implications, was a concern
More details about site security and connectivity both to the City Centre
and neighbouring communities were required

In offering comments on the officers’ questions in the report:


Members were not supportive of the proposed scale and form of
development



Members considered the emerging approach to landscape and public
realm was not acceptable; more greenspace was required



Members considered that more details were required in terms of the
development’s emerging provisions for transportation and connectivity



Members were not supportive of the emerging approach to sustainable
development, more detailed information was required

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 24th March, 2022

Page 15

The Chair thanked the developers for their attendance and presentation
suggesting that Members appeared to be generally supportive of the principle
of the development, but there were a significant number of issues to address.
RESOLVED –
(i)

To note the details contained in the pre-application presentation

(ii)

124

That the developers be thanked for their attendance and
presentation
Date and Time of Next Meeting
RESOLVED - To note that the next meeting will take place on Tuesday, 24th
March 2022 at 1.30pm in the Civic Hall, Leeds.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 24th March, 2022

Page 16

Agenda Item 7

Originator:

C. Briggs

Telephone:

0113 2224409

Report of the Chief Planning Officer
City Plans Panel
Date: 24 March 2022
Subject: Planning application reference 19/02081/FU Full Planning Application for
residential development and ancillary flexible commercial space (use class A1, A2,
A3, A4, B1 and D1) on land at Ellerby Road and East Street, Cross Green, Leeds
Applicant
S Harrison Developments Ltd

Electoral Wards Affected:
Burmantofts & Richmond Hill

Date Valid
03.04.2019

Target Date
22.10.2021

Specific Implications For:
Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion

Yes

Ward Members consulted

Narrowing the Gap

Update Report
RECOMMENDATION:
DEFER and DELEGATE to the Chief Planning Officer for approval subject to the
specified conditions set out in Appendix 2 (and amendment to or addition of any
others which he might consider appropriate) and the completion of a Section 106
agreement to include the following obligations:
-

Affordable housing provision of 18 discounted rent (80% market rent) flats
on-site
On-site publicly accessible greenspace at the northern part of the site

Page 17

1

-

Off-site greenspace contribution for improvements to Bow Street
Recreation Ground £295,635.21
Mitigation for removal of on-street car parking space £6000
Residential Travel Fund £80,580.50
Enhancement to local TROs if necessary as a direct result of the development
Travel plan monitoring fee £4332
Cooperation with local jobs and skill initiatives

In the circumstances where the Section 106 Agreement has not been completed
within 3 months of the resolution to grant planning permission, the final
determination of the application shall be delegated to the Chief Planning Officer.
Conditions
Draft Conditions for 19/02081/FU See Appendix 3 of this report - 20th October
2020 City Plans report
1.0
1.1

Introduction:
This report is brought to City Plans Panel to update Members because it relates
to a change in the affordable housing position that was considered on a major
planning application in the City Centre that proposes a sub-policy position on
affordable housing due to financial viability considerations.

1.2

The application was approved in principle at City Plans Panel on 2 September
2021 subject to the completion of the Section 106 legal agreement.

1.3

The previous Plans Panel reports are attached as Appendix 2 and Appendix 3
of this report and to which Members’ attention is directed, as this contains the
appropriate policy background and substantive analysis of the application as
previously submitted and the proposed draft planning conditions.

2.0
2.1

Change in Affordable Housing Position
In summary, at City Plans Panel 2nd September 2021, Members resolved to defer
and delegate approval to the Chief Planning Officer subject to the specified
conditions in the report and the completion of a Section 106 Agreement to include
the following obligations:
a. Affordable housing provision of 18 discounted rent (80% of market rent) flats
on-site subject to an overage clause upon practical completion of the development
b. On-site publicly accessible greenspace at the northern part of the site
c. Off-site greenspace contribution for improvements to Bow Street Recreation
Ground £295,635.21
d. Mitigation for removal of on-street car parking space £6000
e. Residential Travel Fund £80,580.50
f. Enhancement to local TROs if necessary as a direct result of the
development
g. Travel plan monitoring fee £4332

Page 18

2

h. Cooperation with local jobs and skill initiatives
2.2

With regard to the affordable housing provision and reference to an overage clause
above, at paragraph 2.5.5 of the 2nd September City Plans Panel report, it was
noted that in addition to the 18 discounted rent affordable units to be provided on
site, the applicant offered to increase the number of affordable units up from 5%
as proposed to a potential maximum policy compliant position of 20% discounted
market rent flats (up to 69 flats) should the viability of the project and the market
conditions improve, and subject to an updated and independently assessed
viability appraisal. This means that any potential improvement in viability would
have generated funds towards additional affordable units. This would have formed
the basis of an “overage” clause in the Section 106 legal agreement.

2.3

However, the applicants have now advised that they cannot agree to an overage
clause as envisaged above and set at the same rate as the profit level that the
original assessment was based on, which was 8%. This would mean that any
developer profits received above 8% would be put towards additional affordable
housing up to the value of 69 discounted rent units, from the baseline of the 18
committed to be provided, in total up to a maximum additional 51 units as a prorata mix.

2.4

The applicant states that the Building Cost Information Service (BCIS) all in Tender
Price Index notes an 8.2 % increase between Q4 2019 and Q2 2022, and a
predicted increase of 10.8% between Q4 2019 and Q1 2023 (the earliest likely
start on site date). The contractors that have been approached to revisit pricing
for the applicant are now stating they will not tender work and will only consider
negotiated contracts due to the volatility of the market and the amount of work
currently available to them. Further, the applicant states that since the viability
submission sprinklers and misting systems are now mandatory for this type of
development for fire safety and will add £612,000 to the cost of delivery based on
indicative quotes for a suitable system. Whilst there are additional units in the
revised scheme (of which 8 of the 23 additional units are affordable units), the
revenue they generate would not offset this large increase in delivery costs, nor
does the marginal increase in rents in the area.

2.5

In addition and following approval in principle in September 2021, initial dialogue
has now taken place between the applicants and their professional advisors with
a view to identifying prospective investors for this project, and that has identified a
concern that the project may not secure interest from a funder at all if an overage
provision is part of the development requirement.

2.6

The applicants now do not feel that they can offer overage on this scheme within
the next 3 years. They state that they remain committed to delivering the
development along with 18 affordable units within the scheme, but would request
that the overage provision be removed as a requirement within the S106
Agreement. The provision was originally suggested by the applicants when a lower

Page 19

3

number of affordable units was proposed and was not reflected upon by the
applicants when they made a revised offer. They state that overage on the
consented scheme is unlikely to deliver additional units and its presence will
hamper attempts to deliver the overall development.
3.0

Consideration

3.1

Overage clauses are not required by Development Plan policy under Core Strategy
Policy H5 or the NPPF, although it would have enabled the possibility of additional
affordable units if the economic scenario were to improve through increased profit
level and a stabilising of build costs inflation. The District Valuer has confirmed
that the applicant’s offer of 18 discounted rent flats remains acceptable because
there is no evidence to suggest that the development can provide more, and this
remains an acceptable viability position. The applicant is not proposing to revisit
viability in the light of recent economic circumstances.

3.2

In the absence of a policy requirement for overage when developments propose a
sub-policy affordable housing provision, it is recommended that the Section 106
Agreement draft is progressed in accordance with the 2nd September 2021 City
Plans Panel resolution but without the overage clause.

Appendix 1 – Proposed Layout Plan
Appendix 2 – City Plans Panel 2 September 2021 Report of the Chief Planning
Officer
Appendix 3 – City Plans Panel 22 October 2020 Report of the Chief Planning Officer

Page 20

4

Originator:

C. Briggs

Telephone:

0113 2224409

Report of the Chief Planning Officer
City Plans Panel
Date: 2 September 2021
Subject: Planning application reference 19/02081/FU Full Planning Application for
residential development and ancillary flexible commercial space (use class A1, A2,
A3, A4, B1 and D1) on land at Ellerby Road and East Street, Cross Green, Leeds
Applicant
S Harrison Developments Ltd

Electoral Wards Affected:
Burmantofts & Richmond Hill

Date Valid
03.04.2019

Target Date
22.10.2021

Specific Implications For:
Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion

Yes

Ward Members consulted

Narrowing the Gap

RECOMMENDATION:
DEFER and DELEGATE to the Chief Planning Officer for approval subject to the
specified conditions set out in Appendix 2 (and amendment to or addition of any
others which he might consider appropriate) and the completion of a Section 106
agreement to include the following obligations:
-

Affordable housing provision of 18 discounted rent (80% market rent) flats
on-site subject to an overage clause upon practical completion of the
development
On-site publicly accessible greenspace at the northern part of the site
Off-site greenspace contribution for improvements to Bow Street

Page 21

5

-

Recreation Ground £295,635.21
Mitigation for removal of on-street car parking space £6000
Residential Travel Fund £80,580.50
Enhancement to local TROs if necessary as a direct result of the development
Travel plan monitoring fee £4332
Cooperation with local jobs and skill initiatives

In the circumstances where the Section 106 Agreement has not been completed
within 3 months of the resolution to grant planning permission, the final
determination of the application shall be delegated to the Chief Planning Officer.
Conditions
Draft Conditions for 19/02081/FU See Appendix 2 of this report - 20th October
2020 City Plans report
1.0
1.1

Introduction:
This report is brought to City Plans Panel because it relates to a major planning
application in the City Centre that proposes a sub-policy position on affordable
housing due to a financial viability consideration and which was deferred at City
Plans Panel on 22 October 2020. The previous Plans Panel report is attached
as Appendix 2 of this report and to which Members’ attention is directed, as this
contains the appropriate policy background and substantive analysis of the
application as previously submitted and the proposed draft planning conditions.

1.2

In summary, Members expressed concerns regarding the following matters at
that meeting:
a. Layout of building and façade treatments/materials (including green edge to
East Street)
b. Amount and layout of landscape/greenspace/amenity space
c. Layout, location and quantity of car parking
d. Number of electric vehicle charging points (EVCP)
e. All of the above in the context of the viability case and implications for affordable
housing provision.

1.3

On 7th April 2021 the applicant presented their emerging responses to Members’
previously-expressed concerns at a virtual informal design workshop. This had
been arranged so that the applicant could better understand, and subsequently
aim to respond to, Members’ concerns. It was made clear by Members at the
workshop that any comments at the workshop would not prejudice their views at
Plans Panel, but it allowed them to express them in more detail to the applicant’s
architect.

1.4

Members’ comments at the workshop were positive. Members welcomed the
principle of the revisions to the proposal in terms of façade materials and
architectural detailing, increase in electric vehicle charging points, softening

Page 22

6

effects of grasscrete surfacing in the car park, and the increase in heights by one
storey to two blocks subject to the demonstration that this would not block key
views, and an understanding of the implications for affordable housing provision
at the site.
1.5

The applicant has submitted revised plans in response to the comments at the
workshop and the revisions are assessed below.

1.6

The amendments can be summarised as follows:
a. 23 additional flats 13 x 1-bed, 9 x 2-bed, 1 x 3-bed flats added in two additional
floors of accommodation, one on Block A and one on Block B. Revised
building heights would be as follows:
Block A - 9 Storeys (previously 8)
Block B - 9 Storeys (previously 8)
Block C - 9 Storeys (unchanged)
Block D - 7 Storeys (unchanged)
Block A would include 11 additional units, six of these would be affordable
dwellings.
Block B would include 12 additional units, four of these would be affordable
dwellings.
b. Amendments have been made to the facade materials and architectural
detailing:
- All windows have been aligned vertically on each block as a change to the
staggered fenestration pattern previously proposed;
- Glazing openings increased to all flats to increase the amount of natural
light achieving full height windows;
- Recessed masonry panels removed adjacent to the window panels and
replaced with stack bonded masonry detailing on the line of the façade;
- Juliet balconies incorporated into the window design to all flats;
- Deep window reveals have been retained to all flats and the windows to the
commercial units;
- Perforated metal side panels to bedroom windows;
- Blocks A and C brick colour has been changed to a modern red brick
- Blocks B and D brick colour has been changed to a stone colour brick
- Consistent brick detailing across all blocks to for example utilising a variety
of brick bonding to give a ‘tapestry’ effect.
c. Provision of 31 EVCP stations at completion of the development and futureproof provision including substation capacity, cabling and ducting for a further
72 EVCP-enabled spaces. Previously only 31 EVCP spaces were proposed.
d. The additional storeys have provided a further 10 affordable units across

Page 23

7

the scheme. The mix would comprise of 50% 1 beds, 39% 2 beds and 11% 3
beds, a similar mix to the submitted scheme.
2.0

Appraisal of proposed revisions

2.1

Layout of building and façade treatments/materials (including green edge to
East Street)
2.1.1 It is considered that the proposed revisions represent an improvement in terms of
materials and architectural detailing. The revised window alignment would
improve the proportions of the facades and offer full height glazing for future
residents. The stack bonded masonry detailing would offer variety and interest to
the layering of the facades, combined with Juliet balconies and deep recessed
window reveals, and perforated metal side panels, all emphasise the vertical
rhythm. The increase in height to Block A would improve the proportions of the
block when viewed from East Street. The amendment to Blocks A and C brick
colour changed to a modern red brick would offer a modern crispness, subject to
understanding the texture, colour and type of brick with the provision of samples
at planning condition stage. Blocks B and D brick colour has been changed to a
stone colour to provide contrast and variety, and to complement the use of stone
on adjacent heritage assets.
2.1.2 The footpath along East Street would be increased to achieve a generous width
varying between 4m and 5.5m in front of Block C. The building has been located
as deep into the site as practical to create a wider footway whilst still providing
sufficient space for the vehicular entrance from Bow Street. Unfortunately, the
constraints of this layout means there would not be sufficient space for street trees
but planters are proposed within the gaps between the ground floor brick piers to
the commercial units.
2.1.3 The full height glazing to the commercial unit and PRS management office would
generate an active frontage along East Street, which would provide active frontage
to the street, which is lacking along the other frontages to East Street.
2.1.4

The previous key views that were tested for the previous scheme have been retested and images were produced in order to determine the impact on the
proposed building heights on St Saviours Church. Block A slightly reduces the view
of the church however this is not considered to be harmful. The position of Block
B means it would not be visible from identified key views as it is hidden by existing
buildings, and therefore would not be an impact on the distant views to St Saviours
Church from this location.

2.1.5 With reference to the above considerations and the updated Design and Access
Statement Addendum, it is considered that the applicant has demonstrated the
potential impact of the revised plans on the impact of the massing, scale and
layout of the proposal on the setting of several listed buildings, including the Grade
I Listed St Saviours Church and the Eastern Riverside Conservation Area. It is

Page 24

8

considered that the revised proposal – including its form, scale, materials and
detailed design features – would enhance the significance and setting of nearby
heritage assets in accordance with paragraphs 194-208 of the National Planning
Policy Framework, Core Strategy Policies P10 and P11, the site requirements of
the Aire Valley Leeds Area Action Plan, and in accordance with the duties
incumbent on the Local Planning Authority under s66 and s72 of the Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas Act 1990.
2.2
Amount and layout of landscape/greenspace/amenity space
2.2.1 Although there is not an increase in useable greenspace on site, the space within
the site has been improved in appearance. Car park spaces within the central
courtyard would now be finished in grasscrete to soften the area and significantly
reduce the amount of tarmac. No existing trees require removal at the site, and 41
new trees would be planted within the courtyard space. This would be a managed
and maintained publicly accessible open space secured by way of planning
obligation in the proposed Section 106 Agreement. On balance, as discussed at
section 10.3 of the 22 October 2020 in summary, the siting of the buildings,
provision of public realm, balance of hard and soft landscaping, and location of
future pedestrian routes, would be appropriate to create a sense of place and
ensure good pedestrian connections linking across the site from the Ellerby Road
in the north east to East Street and the riverside beyond, linking to the South Bank.
The proposal would provide new tree planting and would contribute towards
enhancements to the neighbouring recreation ground. It is therefore considered
that the proposal would be on balance in accordance with Saved UPDR Policy
LD1, Core Strategy Policies P10, P11, P12, G1 and the site requirements in the
AVLAAP.
2.3
Layout, location and quantity of car parking
2.3.1 Limitations of the site access mean that, despite the above revisions to the
scheme, the overall layout remains unchanged with the exception of landscaping
improvements noted above. In the context of the wider changes to the scheme,
no further revisions are considered necessary in this regard, subject to the
provision of electric vehicle charging points in line with policy. Car parking
provision would be typical of other edge of City Centre sites at around 34%
provision, and as discussed in section 10.5 of the previous City Plans Panel report,
and this is considered to be acceptable.
2.4
Number of electric vehicle charging points (EVCP)
2.4.1 The applicant originally proposed 31 EVCP. Members expressed concerns
regarding the low provision of EVCP which in order to comply with policy should
be all 124 spaces. In response the applicant has confirmed 31 fully equipped
EVCP stations at completion of the development with a further provision of the
infrastructure to enable future connection of 72 spaces so that substation capacity,
ducting and cabling would be in place for 103 spaces. This remains a short-fall in
overall terms but it is an improvement on the previous submitted scheme. The
applicant proposes a monitoring regime within the Travel Plan for the future

Page 25

9

provision of the charging stations. With reference to the viability considerations in
this case, this is considered acceptable with regard to the requirements of Core
Strategy Policy EN8 and the Parking SPD.
2.5

Proposed revisions in the context of the viability case and implications for
affordable housing provision
2.5.1 The applicant has been able to increase the number of affordable units across the
scheme from the 8 units (2.48%) agreed with the District Valuer (DV) during the
consultation process to 18 units (5%) following the changes listed above and in
particular the addition of one extra storey to blocks A & B as discussed at
paragraph 2.1.4 above.
2.5.2 The previous and proposed apartment totals and mixes are listed below for
reference:
Apartment Mix
Previously submitted mix
1 Bed

2 Bed

3 Bed

Total

177
55%

127
39%

18
6%

322

Revised mix
1 Bed

2 Bed

3 Bed

Total

190
55%

136
39%

19
6%

345

Affordable Mix
Previously submitted mix
1 Bed 2 Bed 3 Bed
4
50%

3
38%

Revised Mix
1 Bed 2 Bed

Total

1
13%

8

3 Bed

Total
18

9

7

2

50%

39%

11%

2.5.3 The applicant has maximised the number of additional affordable units from the
increased revenue generated through the extra floors to blocks A and B. The tables

Page 26

10

above show that the proposals are almost identical to the mix of the submitted
scheme as a pro-rata mix of units for the affordable housing provision.
2.5.4 The applicant has calculated the cost of delivering the additional 23 units at a
slightly reduced cost per sqm on the basis that items such as drainage, foundations
and roof structures were already accounted for in the submitted scheme. The
applicant has used the same rental levels as the DV agreed viability assessment
to determine the total revenue. The applicant has then reviewed the cost of
incorporating a variety of mixes of affordable units and equated this to the revenue
which resulted in the revised mix above.
2.5.5 In addition, the applicant is offering to increase the number of affordable units up
from 5% as proposed to a policy compliant position of 20% discounted market rent
flats (up to 69 flats) should the viability of the project and the market conditions
improve, subject to an updated and independently assessed viability appraisal.
This means that any improvement in viability would generate funds towards
additional affordable units. This is considered reasonable in the context of the
current viability case and this would be included in the provisions of the Section
106 legal agreement.
2.5.6 The DV has confirmed that this is a reasonable approach given the history of
dialogue regarding this site.
2.5.7 All other planning obligations remain as the original submission, as highlighted in
the recommendation box above.
2.5.8

The Community Infrastructure Levy contribution would increase to £161,271.41
from £149,429.30 as a result of the increase in proposed floorspace. The
payment of CIL is not material to the determination of the planning application.
Accordingly, this information is presented for Members’ information only.

2.5.9 In summary the overall benefits of the scheme are considered as follows:
a. 345 new dwellings that would be policy compliant in terms of space standards
(Policy H9) and accessibility standards (Policy H10);
b. Policy compliant cycle parking levels;
c. Policy compliant sustainable design and construction and energy strategy
including future proofing for connection to District Heat Network;
d. 38% (31 spaces) electric vehicle charging point full provision including charging
stations with a further 72 future-proofed provision of electric vehicle charging
infrastructure including cabling and ducting;
e. 41 new trees on-site with no existing trees removed as part of the proposal;
f. off-site contribution to improvements at the neighbouring Bow Street recreation
ground;
g. ground floor active frontages to East Street;
h. new controlled toucan crossing to East Street and a widened shared
footway/cycle way to improve connectivity across and along East Street;
i. landscaping and connectivity improvements to an existing Public Right of Way

Page 27

11

j. regeneration of a longstanding vacant brownfield site with buildings that would
feature good quality architectural details and materials in the setting of heritage
assets; and
k. provision of 18 affordable housing dwellings (5% at 80% discounted market
rent).
3.0
3.1

Conclusion
The application revisions have been published on Public Access since they were
submitted and no additional comments have been made by local residents or
interested parties. Historic England were re-consulted and stated that their
previous comments stand, and these are addressed in the 20 October 2020 City
Plans Panel report and paragraph 2.2.1 of this report.

3.2

It is considered that the scheme represents a significant improvement to the
proposals that were considered in October 2020 with regards to the areas of
concern highlighted by Members at that time.

3.3

As a whole, the proposal would result in a high-quality and appropriate
development, The application is therefore recommended for approval subject to
the planning obligations set out in the recommendation box and the planning
conditions recommended at Appendix 3 of the 22 October 2020 report.

Appendix 1 – Proposed Layout Plan
Appendix 2 – City Plans Panel 22 October Report of the Chief Planning Officer

Page 28

12

Page 29

13

Page 30

14

Page 31

15

Page 32

16

Page 33

17

Page 34

18

Page 35

19

Page 36

20

Page 37

21

Page 38

22

Page 39

23

Page 40

24

Page 41

25

Page 42

26

Page 43

27

Page 44

28

Page 45

29

Page 46

30

Page 47

31

Page 48

32

Page 49

33

Page 50

34

Page 51

35

Page 52

36

Page 53

37

Page 54

38

Page 55

39

Page 56

40

Page 57

41

Page 58

42

Page 59

43

Page 60

44

Page 61

45

Page 62

46

Page 63

47

Page 64

48

Page 65

49

Page 66

50

Page 67

51

Page 68

52

Page 69

53

Page 70

54

Page 71

55

Page 72

56

Page 73

57

Page 74

58

Page 75

59

Page 76

60

Page 77

61

Page 78

62

Page 79

63

Page 80

64

Page 81

65

Page 82

66

Page 83

67

Page 84

68

Page 85

69

Page 86

70

Page 87

71

Page 88

72

Page 89

73

Page 90

74

Page 91

75

Page 92

76

Page 93

77

Page 94

78

Page 95

79

Page 96

80

Page 97

81

Page 98

82

FLAX PLACE

G

F

ON

D

EN

R
ST

T
EE

35

44.8m

25

23

42 to 51

She lter

10
12

16 to 29

Factory

HM

RE

45

1 to 15

32 to 41

9

COT TON STRE
ET

5

RIC

G

15

CH

H IL

4

10
12

11

E
OS

CH

2

CL

UR

L

L Twr

18

44 to 57

62 to 71

16

14

20

Tk

54.9m

RIC

ON
HM

D

HIL

AP

L

PR

O

AC

1

1

K

58 to 71

1

47.2m

72 to 81

LB

8

D

RO

ON

AD

8

HM

THE LANE

6

RIC

30 to 43

52 to 61

he Gateway South

14

3

Saxton

18

1

NE
S H LA
MAR

L Twr

Saxton Gardens

23

MILL ST REET

21

29.3m

H

2

El
Sub
Sta

Mount St Mary's
Catholic High School
(secondary)

11

2

12

10

RICHMOND STREET

Works
TH
E
IN

22

43.3m

Technology

SP

Leeds College of

Y
NE

1 to 19

vers
Wea
e
Ho us

24.7m

se
rs Hou

14 to 16

Slop
in g

T
EE

ry
on

L IS

SM

as

IL

R
ST

m

D

W

se
66 Hou
1 to Lo o m

Th e

ST

60

y
Bd

ST

d
ar
W

ET
RE

The
Engine

FEARN'S
ISLAND

EA

ck

be

b le

Tim

27.7m

51.5m
g

19/02081/FU

Sports Court

RO A

Quay One

EE
T

u se

R BY

ST
R

Ho

EET

NE

onry

49

tead

S TR

U

1 to

rs
Wo

BO W

PT

p in
Slo

East Street Mills

97

NE

E
EL L

mas

1 to 4

Spindle
House

Trinity One

32

Skatepark

1 to 12

She are

House

S
EA

IN
TK

TR
GS

Playing Field

EET

Th
W Dy e
or e
ks

46.9m
81

to

12

6

El Sub Stas
12 7
to 1
69

El Sub Sta

Wharf

29.8m

Bd
y

Recreation Ground

26

W
ar
d

Rob erts

1 to

46.3m

0

76

1 to

Rose Wharf

CAVALIER HILL
RO
AD

15

Museum

16

Terraces

45.7m

29

30.4m

30

to

43
44

24.3m

MP

T

UV
BO

90

s

Depot

91

ESSs

to
10

X1 Aire

w
To

1

1 to 1004

Pa
th

MP

ES

to

ce

ET
RE

ra

CL
OS

71

ST

Te
r

IN G

IE

ST
EA

MP

SP
R

UR

Landing Stage

Hotel

PH

44.6m

CO

80

Rising
Bollard

70

MP

ER

s

to

ce

54

ra

55

Te
r

to

MP

El Sub Sta

OURIES SQUARE

to

BY

78

MP
s

NE

to 8

24.4m

EL
LE
RB
Y

LA

31

St ur's
o
vi rch
Sa hu
C

ER

30

Vicarage

EL
L

to 1
96

Chy

17 0

MoPs
Cn

New Dock Hall

artier House

El Sub Sta

39.1m

Echo Central 1

10

24.3m

El Sub Sta

23

w
To

CR

in

Stanley House

g
th
Pa

Echo Central 2

Multistorey Car Park

O

SS

G

w
To
Pa

U

70

RIE

S

DR

IV
E

th
83
1

AR

ve
Ri

M

O

4

So

11

71

24.0m

58

73

60

ire
rA

25.2m

52

u
en
Av
lar

44

57

79

e

19

EN

E
RIV

AR
CE
AD

27

RO

Works

Depot

77

SD

CL

RIE

en
ard
tG

TCB

Warehouse

65

81

c re
Se

Posts

23.8m

CITY PLANS PANEL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100019567

Page 99

PRODUCED BY CITY DEVELOPMENT, GIS MAPPING & DATA TEAM, LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

SCALE : 1/2500
83

°

R

EE
N

LA

NE

TR
EE

T

Notes
C ta t
sh
th s
aet

st ve y a
a
s.

a
e

y

e
e

e
t s ae

D

e s

s

s te e

e

ee s the a t t es ta e
a y
e e the
s t ate .

e s
th s

Da
s ase
es
a
a
te vest at s
va s.

st
a

a e
te t s
a

a

th se e
the C t e
ese ve .

e ta e
.

th s

ay the

a

a y

h te ts

.

vey a
e st
e
a
s
e tt
te
vey t t a
vey
tat t y Re
e e ts a

t
e

e

a
a esty s tat

e
ey

vey a
e. C

th e ss
C y ht

© careyjones chapmantolcher (Studio South) Ltd. All Rights Reserved

Revisions
Rev. Des.

By

e

Date

ay
a

C
C
ss e t

e t
e t
t

D
Cy e ta s
ate
a
ss e
ate a s a
a
a
ss e
a
ay t a e e

C B
C B
C B

B

B ett
t
ate
ate
ates t
t ath
ths a
a ay ts.
C tya a s a e a e e t
a
th h h ays a
the
e ea
ve e ts t s te
ay t.
D
DC C
C
D
DB C DC C
D C
D
D
D C
D
D
C R
R
D C
D
D
R
R
D
C B D C
D
D
C R
R
R
R
D

R

R

D DR
R

CR
D

DD
D

R

Ch.

.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.
.
.
.
.

.

.

.
.
.

.
.
.

.

.

.

.

D

CR

D

D

Key

1 Bed Apartment
Page 100

2 Bed Apartment
3 Bed Apartment
EV Parking Spaces
Grasscrete Parking
Ducting Provision for
Future EV points
Future wall / soffit
mounted power
supply route for EV
bays

ST
A
A IR

Scale 1:200

LO LIFT
B
A BY

chapmantolcher
t
B

a
s
e
a

se
y

tha

t R
C B

R se

ha
ee s

ast t eet

e
a
.

tst

s.

tst

s.

e t

Ellerby road
Leeds

14012

te

UPPER GROUND FLOOR
COMBINED SITE PLAN
ae

Da

1:250 @ A1 1:500 @A3

TXE

Date

Che

March 2017

PAG

Da

Rev s

(20)1000

P25

y

e

y

PLANNING
84

Agenda Item 8
Originator:

Tim Hart

Telephone: 3788034

Report of the Chief Planning Officer
CITY PLANS PANEL
24th March 2022
Pre-application presentation of proposed multi-storey residential development on land
between Westgate and Croppergate, Leeds LS1 4ND (PREAPP/21/00338)
Applicant – Ridgeback Group
Electoral Wards Affected:

Specific Implications For:

Little London & Woodhouse

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion

Yes

Ward Members consulted

Narrowing the Gap

RECOMMENDATION: This report is brought to Plans Panel for information. The
Developer will present the details of the proposed development to allow Members to
consider and comment on the proposals at this stage.
1.0

Introduction

1.1

This presentation is intended to inform Members of the emerging proposals for the
construction of a 31 storey building at the western gateway into the City Centre
adjacent to the Inner Ring Road and opposite the former site of the Yorkshire Post.
The landmark building would contain 399 built to rent residential apartments within a
new, high quality, landscaped setting designed to integrate with and reinforce the
council’s upcoming pedestrian and cycling improvements around the Westgate
intersection.

2.0

Site and surroundings

2.1

The irregularly-shaped site is bounded by Westgate to the west, which incorporates
an area of pay and display parking; Cropper Gate to the south and east; and Ebor
Court, a three-storey office building and its car park abuts the eastern boundary north
of Skinner Street. The site, covering approximately 0.2 hectares, is cleared and
surrounded by site hoardings but is prominent in views from the west.
Page 101

1

2.2

The site is located at the extreme western end of Wellington Street with major highway
infrastructure, including the elevated A58M Inner Ring Road, situated to the west.
Buildings directly to the east are an equivalent size to those at Ebor Court though
beyond Lisbon Street buildings such as Castle House are much larger. The Headline,
the first building to be constructed on the former Yorkshire Post site on the southern
side of Wellington Street opposite the site, is an 18 storey apartment building. Nearby
properties are primarily in office uses whilst the redevelopment of the former
International Pool site will bring forward new residential accommodation, purpose-built
student accommodation, offices and a hotel.

3.0

Proposals

3.1

The lowest third of the building (ground to ninth floor) would be split into two separate
elements by a 6m wide cut incorporating a pedestrian ground level walkway linking
Cropper Gate to Westgate. The southern element, closest to Wellington Street, would
accommodate the primary entrance into a reception area and amenity space, together
with the southern core, plant and bin storage. The northern leg would contain the
northern core, bin storage, water tanks, a generator room and accessible cycle storage
facilities. The first floor of the southern leg would contain further amenity space and
cycle storage areas. The northern leg at this level would contain additional cycle
storage and 4 apartments. All floors above this level would be contain apartments.
The northern element of the 2nd – 9th floor would extrude out further north and west
than the levels below.

3.2

The two elements would be joined at the 10th floor with the northern part stepping back
to the configuration at the lowest levels of the building up to the 30th floor. The
southern part of the 20th - 30th floors would step in from the levels below enabling a
continuous curved form along the western elevation which would extend around the
southern and northern elevations, creating a strong and attractive form that would
respond positively to its context at the western extreme of Wellington Street and its
relationship with the infrastructure to the west. Meanwhile, the more composed
eastern elevation would be facetted in response to the alignment of Cropper Gate and
Skinner Street.

3.3

The proposed building sits back from the line of buildings which previously occupied
the site. The site is further fragmented by the introduction of the proposed pedestrian
route extending east-west along the line of Skinner Street. Emerging proposals
illustrate new soft landscaping around the site, with a mix of lawned areas and trees.
The development also identifies aspirations to provide more extensive soft
landscaping and improved pedestrian routes should rationalisation of the existing wide
expanse of hard-surfacing and infrastructure be possible.

4.0

Relevant planning history

4.1

Planning permission was granted for a part 10, part 28 storey block containing 272
apartments, offices, and A3 and basement parking on 24th August 2005
(20/207/05/FU). The 2005 application (20/207/05/FU) was an amendment of a 2004
application (20/283/04/FU) which itself was an amendment of a 2002 application
(20/460/02/FU). The planning permission was extended on 22nd July 2011
(10/03459/EXT).

4.2

Bridge House and Compton House, the former buildings occupying the site, were
demolished during 2016 leaving a cleared site.
Page 102

2

4.3

Planning permission was granted on 1st September 2020 for the redevelopment of
116-120 Wellington Street, 3 office buildings on the east side of Cropper Gate south
of Skinner Street, with a single building 17 storeys in height comprising office
accommodation with ground floor ancillary and complementary retail and leisure
floorspace (19/04905/FU).

4.4

City Plans Panel deferred and delegated approval of a hybrid application for
redevelopment of the former International Pool site east of Lisbon Street on 25th
November 2021 (21/05142/FU). The scheme includes residential buildings which
would be 33 and 22 storeys; the student residential building would be 24 storeys; and
the aparthotel 14 storeys in height.

5.0

Consultation responses

5.1

LCC Highways Transport Development Services – There are no objections to the
principle of the development. A Transport Assessment and Travel Plan will need to
be submitted with any application. Contributions may be required to support junction
improvements at Wellington Street Gyratory and Armley Gyratory and local
pedestrian/cycle improvements. S106 Agreement may be required to secure TRO
amendments, car club spaces and travel plan implementation.

5.1.1

The proposed development sits predominantly within the red line boundary. However,
there is a section on the western façade above first floor level which is proposed as
wind mitigation that overhangs the adopted highway. This is not acceptable from a
highways perspective. However, there is also a LCC scheme to improve pedestrian
and cycle facilities along Westgate and around the proposed building to connect to
Cropper Gate, removing the existing car parking along West Gate. This would allow
the area to be utilised for improved public realm, which would complement the
applicant’s proposals. Internal discussions are ongoing in how this matter can be
resolved and how the LCC pedestrian/cycling proposals can complement the
proposals.

5.1.2

The site is located within the city centre. Improvements may be required to provide
enhanced facilities for pedestrians and cyclists, tying into the Cycle Super Highway
works along Wellington Street and the provision of appropriate way-finding.
Additionally, the potential LCC pedestrian/cycling scheme on Westgate will also need
to be considered.

5.1.3

There is currently no vehicular access shown to the site, with servicing proposed from
a layby off Cropper Gate. Careful consideration will be required for servicing of the
development and access for refuse collection. Any works within the highway will need
to be constructed under a S278 Agreement, including the removal of existing access
points where the footway may need to returned to full height kerbs, along with public
realm improvements, where these may be agreed.

5.1.4

Servicing and bin storage will need to be demonstrated as part of any application. The
two areas shown as possible refuse collection points on West Gate will not be
available, should the LCC pedestrian/cycle scheme go ahead. Consequently, should
this arise, all servicing will have to take place from Cropper Gate.

5.1.5

The site is located within the Core Parking Control Area boundary. There is currently
no car parking proposed at the development. The impact of a car park free
development should be demonstrated in a Transport Assessment and particularly the
requirement for disabled parking. Secure covered cycle and motorcycle parking
provision should accord with the guidance and technical specifications provided in the
Page 103
3

draft Transport SPD. However, the revised proposals suggest that cycle parking will
be provided at 70%. Whilst this may be acceptable, it would be on the basis of
enhanced quality of provision. It is noted that much of the cycle parking is to be
provided at first floor level. Therefore, very careful consideration will be required for
access to the cycle parking e.g. lifts/doors etc, will need to be of sufficient size and
ease of use to accommodate bicycles easily, so that they don’t become a deterrent to
their use. Similarly, access to the doors/lifts (i.e. outside of the building) will need to
be suitable for both pedestrians and cyclists (the current plans reference the gap
through the proposed building as being for pedestrians only). Alterations to TRO’s may
be required to prevent overspill parking. This will be secured via a S106 Agreement.
A Car Park and Service Management Plan would be required.
5.1.6

A series of off-site highway works were agreed as part of the earlier applications which
included alterations to Cropper Gate and Skinner Street and public realm
improvements around the building. A wind assessment will need to be provided and
must consider the effect of the building on the surrounding highway network. It is likely
that any increased trip generation resulting from the development would require the
developer to contribute to improvements at the Wellington Street Gyratory and the
Armley Gyratory. Once the Transport Development Services Section have confirmed
that any off-site highway works are acceptable, a supplementary Independent Stage
1 Road Safety Audits (RSA1) will be required as a final check before the works can be
formally accepted.

5.2

LCC Flood Risk Management (FRM) – The application site is located within part Flood
Zone 3 and part Flood zone 2 and therefore the applicant should provide a NPPF
compliant Flood Risk Assessment setting out the proposed flood risk mitigation
measures proposed and that these have been accepted by the Environment Agency.
It is recommended that early dialogue with the EA is undertaken to identify the scope
of the FRA and any additional modelling that may be required.

5.2.1

In respect to the proposed drainage, then the foul drainage is assumed to discharge
to the adjacent Yorkshire Water (YW) combined sewer within Skinner Street and
agreement should be obtained from YW to confirm the point of connection of the foul
drainage. In respect to surface water drainage, then it is anticipated that this will
discharge to the existing 1220mm diameter surface water sewer located within
Wellington Road and the discharge rate should be restricted to 3.5 l/s as the existing
site has lain fallow for many years and therefore the use of brownfield rates will not be
applicable.

5.2.2

The development should seek to maximise the use of SUDS although taking into
account the urban location and likely footprint it is accepted that the use of SUDs may
be restricted. However, the use of rain gardens, blue and green roofs and where
possible the use of infiltration systems should all be considered.

5.2.3

To support the application a Drainage Assessment should be submitted demonstrating
how the development can be drained to comply with the LCC Minimum Development
Control Standards for Flood Risk

5.3

LCC Contaminated Land Team - the proposed development includes sensitive end
uses. Therefore, a Phase 1 Desk Study Report will be required in support of the
application. Depending on the outcome of the Phase 1 Desk Study, a Phase 2 Report
and Remediation Statement may also be required.

5.4

LCC Landscape - The proposed development is of substantial scale and height and
should be set within a strong landscape setting with large-species street trees. It is
Page 104
4

important to develop the design at this stage with consideration for adequate space
for the long-term health and amenity of trees. Trees are shown on design drawings in
covered areas and with their canopies touching the building which is likely to create
ongoing issues with management, maintenance and pressure for pruning and removal
of trees.
5.4.1

The following principles are recommended: Large-species trees with natural canopies
should be used for maximum amenity, carbon capture and biodiversity value. A variety
of species which are suitable for the location adjacent to a transport corridor are
recommended for resilience. Large trees should be located minimum 10m from
building edge to avoid long-term conflicts with resident amenity and maintenance
issues. A planted buffer to Wellington Street (as shown in the Landscape & Public
Realm Concept) is supported.

5.4.2

Consideration should be given at this stage to the feasibility of providing adequate soil
volumes for trees in hard landscape and planters. The public space around the
building should include some playful features (can be natural, sculptural, abstract,
multifunctional etc. as appropriate for the concept).

6.0

Policy

6.1

Development Plan

6.1.1

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the
application to be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. For the purposes of decision making for this
proposal within the City Centre boundary, the Development Plan for Leeds currently
comprises the following documents:
•
•
•
•

The Leeds Core Strategy 2014 (as amended by the Core Strategy Selective
Review 2019)
Saved UDP Policies (2006), included as Appendix 1 of the Core Strategy
The Natural Resources & Waste Local Plan (NRWLP, Adopted January 2013)
including revised policies Minerals 13 and 14 (Adopted September 2015)
Site Allocations Plan (Adopted July 2019)

6.2

Leeds Core Strategy (CS)

6.2.1

The Core Strategy sets out the strategic level policies and vision to guide the delivery
of development and the overall future of the district. Relevant Core Strategy policies
include:
-

-

-

Spatial Policy 1 prioritises the redevelopment of previously developed land in a
way that respects and enhances the local character and identity of places and
neighbourhoods.
Spatial Policy 3 seeks to maintain and enhance the role of the City Centre as an
economic driver for the District and City Region by (iv) Comprehensively planning
the redevelopment and re-use of vacant and under-used sites and buildings for
mixed use development and new areas of public space.
Spatial Policy 8 supports a competitive local economy through (ii) enterprise and
innovation in…housing, leisure and tourism; (iii) Job retention and creation,
promoting the need for a skilled workforce, educational attainment and reducing
barriers to employment opportunities.
Spatial Policy 11 includes a priority related to improved facilities for pedestrians to
promote safety and accessibility and provision for people with impaired mobility.
Page 105
5

-

-

-

Policy CC1 outlines the planned growth within the City Centre. Part B encourages
residential development, providing that it does not prejudice town centre functions
and provides a reasonable level of amenity for occupiers.
Policy CC3 states new development will need to provide and improve walking and
cycling routes connecting the City Centre with adjoining neighbourhoods and
improve connections within the City Centre.
Policy H3 states that housing development should meet or exceed 65 dwellings
per hectare in the City Centre.
Policy H4 states that developments should include an appropriate mix of dwelling
types and sizes to address needs measured over the long term taking into account
the nature of the development and character of the location.
Policy H5 identifies affordable housing requirements.
Policy H8 states developments of more than 49 dwellings should include support
for Independent Living.
Policy H9 refers to minimum space standards in new dwellings.
Policy H10 identifies accessible housing standards.
Policy P10 requires new development to be based on a thorough contextual
analysis to provide good design appropriate to its scale and function, delivering
high quality innovative design and that development protects and enhance the
district’s historic assets in particular, historically and locally important buildings,
skylines and views.
Policy P11 states that the historic environment and its settings will be conserved,
particularly those elements which help to give Leeds its distinct identity.
Policies T1 and T2 identify transport management and accessibility requirements
to ensure new development is adequately served by highways and public
transport, and with safe and secure access for pedestrians, cyclists and people
with impaired mobility.
Policy G9 states that development will need to demonstrate biodiversity
improvements.
Policies EN1 and EN2 set targets for CO2 reduction and sustainable design and
construction, and at least 10% low or zero carbon energy production on-site.
Policy EN4 states that where technically viable major developments should
connect to district heating networks.
Policy EN5 identifies requirements to manage flood risk.
Policy EN8 identifies electric vehicle charging infrastructure requirements.
Policy ID2 outlines the Council’s approach to planning obligations and developer
contributions.

6.3

Saved Unitary Development Plan Review policies (UDPR)

6.3.1

Relevant Saved Policies include:
-

6.4

Policy GP5 states that all relevant planning considerations are to be resolved.
Policy BD2 requires that new buildings complement and enhance existing
skylines, vistas and landmarks.
Policy BD4 relates to provision for all mechanical plant on and servicing of new
developments.
Policy BD5 requires new buildings to consider both amenity for their own
occupants and that of their surroundings including usable space, privacy and
satisfactory daylight and sunlight.
Policy LD1 sets out criteria for landscape schemes.

Natural Resources & Waste Local Plan (NRWLP)
Page 106

6

6.4.1

The NRWLP identifies where land is needed to enable the City to manage resources,
like trees, minerals, waste and water and identifies specific actions which will help use
the natural resources in a more efficient way.

6.4.2

Relevant policies include:
-

Air 1 states that all applications for major development will be required to
incorporate low emission measures to ensure that the overall impact of proposals
on air quality is mitigated.
Water 1 requires water efficiency, including incorporation of sustainable drainage
Water 4 requires the consideration of flood risk issues
Water 6 requires flood risk assessments.
Water 7 requires development not to increase surface water run-off and to
introduce SUDS where feasible.
Land 1 requires consideration of land contamination issues.
Land 2 identifies the need to introduce new tree planting as part of creating high
quality living and working environments and enhancing the public realm.

6.5

Site Allocations Plan (SAP)

6.5.1

The Site Allocations Plan was adopted in July 2019. Following a statutory challenge,
Policy HG2, so far as it relates to sites which immediately before the adoption of the
SAP were within the green belt, has been remitted to the Secretary of State and is to
be treated as not adopted. All other policies within the SAP remain adopted and
should be afforded full weight.

6.5.2

The site was allocated for mixed use development (MX1-7) identifying a site capacity
of 272 residential units and 3,620sqm of office space (referencing planning permission
10/03459/EXT).
Other material considerations

6.6

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

6.6.1

The NPPF was updated in July 2021. Paragraph 11 states that decisions should apply
a presumption in favour of sustainable development. Permission should be granted
unless the application of policies in the Framework provides a clear reason for refusing
the development; or any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly
and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the Framework as a
whole.

6.6.2

Chapter 5 identifies guidance for the delivery of a sufficient supply of homes.

6.6.3

Chapter 7 relates to measures to ensure the vitality of town centres to promote their
long-term vitality and viability allowing them to grow and diversify, allowing a suitable
mix of uses (including housing) and reflecting their distinctive characters.

6.6.4

Chapter 8 promotes healthy and safe communities aiming to achieve healthy, inclusive
and safe places. Decisions should promote public safety and take into account wider
security requirements (paragraph 97).

6.6.5

Chapter 9 identifies measures to promote sustainable transport. Paragraph 112 states
that priority should be given to pedestrian and cycle movements; the needs of people
with disabilities and reduced mobility addressed; creation of safe, secure and
Page 107

7

attractive spaces; allow for the efficient delivery of goods; and be designed to enable
use by sustainable vehicles.
6.6.6

Chapter 11 states that decisions should promote an effective use of land in meeting
the need for homes and other uses, while safeguarding and improving the
environment and ensuring safe and healthy living conditions.

6.6.7

Chapter 12 identifies the importance of well-designed places and the need for a
consistent and high quality, beautiful and sustainable buildings and places. Paragraph
126 states that the creation of high-quality buildings and places is fundamental to what
the planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect
of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps
make development acceptable to communities. Paragraph 130 states that planning
decisions should ensure that developments:
a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term
but over the lifetime of the development;
b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping;
c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate
innovation or change (such as increased densities);
d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive
places to live, work and visit;
e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and support
local facilities and transport networks; and
f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users and where
crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or
community cohesion and resilience.
Paragraph 131 recognises that trees make an important contribution to the character
and quality of urban environments and can also help mitigate and adapt to climate
change.

6.6.8

Chapter 14 identifies the approach to meeting the climate change challenge. New
development should avoid increased vulnerability to the range of impacts arising from
climate change and should be planned so as to help reduce greenhouse gas
emissions, such as through its location, orientation and design (paragraph 154).

6.6.9

Chapter 15 identifies guidelines for conserving and enhancing the natural
environment. Paragraph 174 states that new and existing development should not be
put at unacceptable risk or be adversely affected by unacceptable levels of soil, air,
water or noise pollution. Development should, wherever possible, help to improve
local environmental conditions.

6.6.10 Chapter 16 refers to the historic environment.
planning authorities should take account of:

Paragraph 197 states that local

a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and
putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;
b) the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and
Page 108
8

c) the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character
and distinctiveness.
Paragraph 199 states that “When considering the impact of a proposed development
on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the
asset’s conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should
be).” Paragraph 202 states that “Where a development proposal will lead to less than
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should
be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate,
securing its optimum viable use.“
6.7

Supplementary guidance
-

6.8

Accessible Leeds SPD
Travel Plans SPD
Building for Tomorrow Today: Sustainable Design and Construction SPD
Neighbourhoods for Living SPG
City Centre Urban Design Strategy SPD
Tall Buildings Design Guide SPD
Transport SPD (revised draft)
Connecting Leeds Transport Strategy

Other Relevant Legislation
S66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 reads:
“In considering whether to grant planning permission [ or permission in principle] for
development which affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning authority
or, as the case may be, the Secretary of State shall have special regard to the
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special
architectural or historic interest which it possesses.”

7.0

Issues
Members are asked to comment on the emerging proposals and to consider the
following matters:

7.1

Principle of the development

7.1.1

Prior to demolition the vacant and dilapidated buildings were an eyesore at this
prominent gateway location into the City Centre. Whereas planning permission was
granted in 2005 and 2011 for redevelopment with a tall residential building the
permission was not implemented and the site has remained vacant for several years.
The SAP allocated the site for mixed use development (MX1-7) identifying a site
capacity of 272 residential units and 3,620sqm of office space (referencing planning
permission 10/03459/EXT). However, the capacities identified in the SAP are
indicative, either based on previous relevant planning history or a generic formula
applied across the city, acknowledging that the density of uses identified in planning
applications may be higher or lower depending on site circumstances and applications
will be judged on their own merits against other material considerations.

7.1.2

The site is located within the designated City Centre. CS policy CC1(b) encourages
residential development in City Centre locations providing that the development does
not prejudice the functions of the City Centre and that it provides a reasonable level
of amenity for occupiers (see paragraph 7.5 below). The development would deliver
Page 109
9

399 residential apartments which would represent a meaningful contribution towards
the Core Strategy’s aim to provide 10,200 new homes within the City Centre over the
plan period.
7.1.3

Consequently, the emerging proposals identify the regeneration of a vacant and
under-utilised site at a key gateway into the City Centre which would make more
effective use of this sustainably located brownfield site.

7.2

Townscape and heritage considerations

7.2.1

Whilst cleared, the existing site detracts from the wider townscape in a prominent
location adjacent to the A58M and Wellington Street. The Tall Buildings Design Guide
provides design guidance on the acceptable location, form and appearance of tall
buildings. The site is not within a sensitive zone and is located at the extreme western
edge of key view 3. The SPD identifies the site as a gateway location at the
conjunction of areas where there is opportunity for a string of tall buildings. It also
identifies the proposed tall building approved on the site. More recently, approval in
principle has also been given for tall buildings 100m to the north east on the former
International Pool site and permission was also granted for a large building on the site
to the east of Cropper Gate. The redevelopment of the former Yorkshire Post site
75m to the south will also bring forward buildings of scale. As a result, the site’s
location presents an opportunity for a tall building at this gateway into the City Centre.

7.2.2

The site is located at the convergence of Wellington Street and Westgate which at this
point, alongside the A58M, sweeps around from north-east towards the south west
whereas the eastern edge is constrained by the position of Cropper Gate and Skinner
Street. As a result, the irregular shape of the site, in association with its position at
the entrance to Wellington Street, generates a distinctive and site-specific footplate to
the building with curved edges to the north, south and west and straight edges to the
east.

7.2.3

The lowest third of the building (ground to ninth floor) would be split into two separate
elements by a 6m wide cut. The northern element of the 2nd – 9th floor would extrude
out further north and west than the levels below. The two elements would be joined
at the 10th floor with the northern section stepping back to the configuration at the
lowest levels of the building up to the 30th floor. The southern part of the 20th - 30th
floors would step in from the levels below enabling a continuous curved form along the
western elevation which would extend around the southern and northern elevations.
Meanwhile, the more composed eastern elevation would be facetted in response to
the alignment of Cropper Gate and Skinner Street.

7.2.4

Massing studies have been undertaken to enable analysis of how the building would
relate to its context and the wider cityscape. The proportions of the longest, northwest, elevation would be softened by its curved form which responds positively to the
sweep of the A58M. Further, the rounded southern end positioned closer to the
conjunction of Westgate and Wellington Street, would present an attractive profile on
approaches from the south west. The break in scale of the top third of this part of the
building would also help to refer back to lower scale buildings towards the east whilst
the 10 storey cut would add interest to the composition. The facetted east elevations
would refer back more directly to the more conventional building forms within the City
Centre.

7.2.5

Given the scale of the proposed building special regard needs to be paid to the
desirability of preserving the setting of listed buildings and special attention needs to
be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of
Page 110
10

the conservation area. Whereas the separation between the site, listed buildings and
the nearest conservation areas is such that the impact upon these heritage assets is
not considered to be substantial or harmful, the impact will be reviewed in further detail
in the forthcoming application.
7.2.6

The base of the building mass would be clearly defined by extensive glazing on the
southern section and an extruding canopy around the northern section. The top of the
building would be marked by a suitably proportioned parapet above the top level of
windows to clearly define this point. Full double height vertically proportioned windows
in deep reveals would be utilised to ensure the balance of solid and void is appropriate
for a building of such a scale.

7.2.7

The use of brick as the primary facing material would enable the curved forms to be
realised. Visualisations show that a textured, red brick, helps to produce a strong and
contextual form which relates appropriately to its location whereas lighter tones appear
reticent and misplaced.

7.2.6

Do Members support the proposed scale and form of development?

7.3

Landscape, public realm and biodiversity

7.3.1

The prominence of the site dictates the need for high quality landscaping around the
development to produce a suitable setting for the building, an attractive entrance to
this part of the City Centre, and improved connections around the site. Whereas the
site is constrained, it sits within a wider expanse of hard-surfacing and infrastructure
which could potentially be rationalised to help realise these aspirations.

7.3.2

Coincidentally, the Council also intends bringing forward a highway’s scheme in the
near future to improve pedestrian and cycling routes around the Westgate intersection
extending as far as Cropper Gate. The integration of the developers’ and the Council’s
initiatives has the potential to bring forward a significant improvement to existing
conditions which would accord with CS policies SP11 and CC3

7.3.3

The proposed building forms themselves aid movement around their exterior whilst
the east-west cut would enable improved permeability through the site. The emerging
landscape and public realm proposals identify the intent to produce a suitably highquality layout incorporating lawned areas and a mix of trees arranged around newlydefined pedestrian routes. If delivered in this way the development would help to
enhance the quality of the landscape in accordance with CS policy P12 and accord
with NRWLP policy Land 3. Such an approach, potentially in combination with blue
and green roofs and integral bird nesting features in the new building, could help the
development to deliver an overall net gain in biodiversity to accord with CS policy G9.

7.3.4

Do Members consider that the emerging approach to landscape and public
realm is acceptable?

7.4

Transportation and connectivity

7.4.1

The proposed development is located on a constrained site in a sustainable City
Centre location. It is proposed that no dedicated car parking will be provided for the
residents. The Council’s parking policies in this central location do not require a
minimum level of car parking provided there would be no adverse impact on the
highway network. In this case there are existing widespread on-street parking controls
which should prevent inconsiderate and obstructive parking and easy walking access
to public transport and other services residents will rely on. Notwithstanding, the
Page 111
11

impact of a car park free development would need to be demonstrated in a Transport
Assessment and particularly the absence of any disabled parking.
7.4.2

Improvements may be required to provide enhanced facilities for pedestrians and
cyclists, tying into the Cycle Super Highway works along Wellington Street and the
provision of appropriate way-finding. Further discussions are also required to confirm
how the Council’s proposals for pedestrians and cyclists on Westgate can complement
the proposals.

7.4.3

Secure covered cycle and motorcycle parking provision should accord with the
guidance and technical specifications provided in the draft Transport SPD. However,
the proposals suggest that cycle parking would be provided at 70%. This may be
acceptable subject to the quality of provision being enhanced to make it more usable
for more people. Due to the limited footprint of the building much of the cycle parking
is intended to be provided at first floor level. Therefore, very careful consideration will
be required for access to the cycle parking e.g. lifts/doors etc. will need to be of
sufficient size and ease of use to accommodate bicycles easily, so that they don’t
become a deterrent to their use. Similarly, access to the doors/lifts (i.e. outside of the
building) will need to be suitable for both pedestrians and cyclists.

7.4.4

As there is no vehicular access onto the site, with servicing proposed from a lay-by on
Cropper Gate, careful consideration will be required for servicing of the development
and access for refuse.

7.4.5

Do Members support the approach to a car free development subject to no
adverse impacts on the highway being demonstrated?

7.5

Housing and residential amenity
Density

7.5.1

CS Policy H3 requires housing developments in the City Centre to meet or exceed 65
dwellings per hectare. The proposals identify 399 residential apartments on a site
area of 0.25ha thereby significantly exceeding the minimum policy requirement and
making efficient use of brownfield land in a highly sustainable City Centre location.
Housing mix

7.5.2

Policy H4 of the Leeds Core Strategy aims to ensure that new housing delivered in
Leeds provides an appropriate mix of dwelling types and sizes to address needs
measured over the long-term taking account of preferences and demand in different
parts of the city. With this in mind the policy is worded to offer flexibility. Due to the
denser character of the City Centre, the policy states that the requirement for houses
is not applicable. Targets for the number of bedrooms in flats ranges from 10% for
one and four bedroom apartments, 30% for three bedroom apartments, up to 50%
with two bedrooms.

7.5.3

The current proposals show that there would be 137 (34%) one-bedroom apartments,
according with the 0-50% range identified in H4; 223 (56%) two-bedroom apartments,
according with the 30-80% range identified in H4; and 39 (10%) three-bedroom
apartments, falling short of the 20-70% range suggested by H4. However, it is noted
that 2 bedroom apartments can be designed to provide either bedspaces for 3 people
(61sqm) or 4 people (70sqm). The forthcoming planning application would be
supported by a detailed Housing Needs Assessment intended to justify the proposed
Page 112

12

mix of unit sizes and demonstrate how the development would take into account
location, preferences and changing demand.
Affordable housing
7.5.4

CS policy H5 sets a minimum target that 7% of new homes in major developments in
this part of the city should be affordable housing with a mix of intermediate and social
rents at benchmark rents. 399 apartments would generate the need for 28 affordable
units based upon this policy. Alternatively, Build to Rent developments can provide
either 20% (80) of the dwellings as “Affordable Private Rent” dwellings with rents 20%
lower than market rents in the local area and agreement of eligibility criteria with
secure arrangements that continue in perpetuity; or a commuted sum in lieu of on-site
provision of affordable housing.

7.5.5

CS policy H5 does not outline a hierarchy or preferred approach, instead confirming
that each of the three options are appropriate and accepted for developments of this
nature as alternatives. This offers full flexibility for the applicant to choose in the case
of Build to Rent schemes whether to provide the affordable housing requirement on
site or to offer an off-site contribution in lieu of on-site provision. The rationale for this
approach was set out in the report to Executive Board in March 2017

7.5.6

The developer has confirmed that the development will be compliant with CS Policy
H5 with further details of affordable housing to be confirmed at the application stage.
Space standards and residential amenity

7.5.7

CS policy H9 requires all new dwellings to comply with the identified minimum space
standards so as to create a healthy living environment. The developer has confirmed
that all units will conform with these requirements. H9 standards reference not just
the number of bedrooms but also the number of bedspaces to be provided. As an
illustration, 2 bedroom apartments can be designed to provide either bedspaces for 3
people (61sqm) or 4 people (70sqm); whereas 3 bedroom apartments can be
designed to provide for 4 people (74sqm), 5 people (86sqm) or 6 people (95sqm).

7.5.8

In common with other Build to Rent developments, additional communal amenity
space would be provided within the building for residents’ use to supplement private
spaces in apartments. 264sqm is proposed at ground floor and 298sqm is identified
at first floor.

7.5.9

Apartments are located at first floor and above. All apartments facing south and northwest would enjoy open aspects and unrestricted views. Those apartments fronting
Cropper Gate and Skinner Street would have more restricted outlooks due to their
relationship with existing low level, or approved medium level, buildings to the east of
Cropper Gate. However, in the context of the grain and density of the City Centre, the
relationship is not considered unacceptable. The location of the northern core
adjacent to the eastern elevation ensures that the neighbouring site to the east would
not be sterilised.

7.5.10 Due to the proximity of busy highways to the development it is likely that a high level
of acoustic attenuation, alongside whole house ventilation, will be required to ensure
that road noise is suitably-mitigated and apartments do not overheat.
7.6

Accessibility and inclusion
Page 113

13

7.6.1

Alongside the Accessibility SPD, CS policies P10(vi) and T2 require that
developments are accessible to all users. The emerging proposals suggest that
gradients within external spaces will be accessible and respond to the needs of all
users. Detailed landscape design should meet the standards set out in Approved
Document Part M and British Standard (BS) 8300.

7.6.2

The developer has confirmed the development would provide accessible
accommodation in line with the Accessible Leeds SPD, BS8300 and Building
Regulations standards.

7.6.3

CS policy H10 requires that 30% of the new homes should be accessible and
adaptable dwellings (Building Regulations standard M4(2)) and 2% of homes should
be adaptable to wheelchair user standards (M4(3)). The developer has confirmed that
the detailed design will be compliant with these standards. Due to the limited site area
and the intent to improve the public realm, pedestrian and cycling connections around
the site no parking, including accessible parking, is proposed.

7.7

Sustainability and Climate Change

7.7.1

The CS sustainable development policies are designed so that new development
contributes to carbon reduction targets and incorporates measures to address climate
change concerns following the Council’s declaration of a climate emergency in 2019.
Policy EN1 is flexible, allowing developers to choose the most appropriate and costeffective carbon reduction solution for their site. Major developments also need to
meet the BREEAM Excellent standard if feasible (EN2). Where technically viable,
appropriate for the development, and in areas with sufficient existing or potential heat
density, major developments should propose heating systems, potentially connecting
to the emerging district heating network (EN4(i)).

7.7.2

It is intended that the development will accord with CS policies. This would be
achieved through the implementation of a wide range of strategies and measures
including further consideration of the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Passive design measures to create a fabric first approach to energy efficiency
through improved air permeability performance, improved thermal insulation,
optimised solid to glass and optimising solar transmittance
Air source heat pumps for domestic hot water production
Photovoltaic cells for hot water generation
Mechanical Ventilation with Heat Recovery (MVHR) with low specific fan power
providing continuous operation
Waste water heat recovery using residual heat from waste water to preheat the
incoming cold feed
Low flow sanitary-ware to ensure water usage is less than 110 litres per day per
person
Efficient LED lighting
Electric panel heaters with integral thermostat and wi-fi controls

7.8

Wind environment

7.8.1

Due to the scale of the proposed building and its largely exposed location there is a
significant potential for the generation of strong winds around the development. The
applicant engaged wind consultants at the commencement of the design process to
provide advice regarding the safety and comfort of the wind environment resulting from
the development. This has resulted in modifications to the building form and a canopy
Page 114
14

projecting from the west elevation above first floor level to ensure a safe and
comfortable wind environment at ground level.
7.8.2

As the proposed canopy would overhang the current location of the adopted footway
it would not be acceptable from a Highway’s perspective. However, the Council
scheme to improve pedestrian and cycle facilities along Westgate and around the
proposed building provides the opportunity to review and revise the alignment of the
footway. This could be designed so as to remove concerns regarding the projection
of wind mitigation measures over the adopted highway. Ultimately, the forthcoming
planning application will include a wind study that will be independently peer reviewed
on behalf of the Council.

7.9

Safety and security

7.9.1

CS policy P10(v) identifies that developments should create safe and secure
environments that reduce the opportunities for crime and the NPPF states that
developments should be safe and accessible so that crime and disorder, and the fear
of crime, do not undermine quality of life.

7.9.2

The existing site is located at a key position at the west end of a pedestrian footway
which follows the A58M. During a long period when the buildings were vacant the site
attracted issues of vandalism and anti-social behaviour. The site was cleared 6 years
ago but without any presence there is currently no passive or active surveillance.

7.9.3

The emerging proposals identify a car-free development that would result in a
significant number of people walking and cycling to the site. The Council’s proposals
for Westgate should augment such movements. Further, works to improve the
pedestrian corridor alongside the A58M on the former International Pool site will bring
additional movement and activity. Cumulatively, all these proposals should reduce
the fear of crime.

7.9.4

The southern section of the proposed building includes extensive active frontage with
full height glazing that would increase passive surveillance around much of the site.
Opportunities for a similar arrangement in the northern section are limited due to the
extent of plant in this area. However, there would be entrances into the northern core
and the cycle storage area which would ensure regular comings and goings.
Apartments and amenity spaces at first floor would overlook much of the periphery of
the site. It is likely that detailed design would illustrate the intended approach to
external lighting and provision of CCTV so as to further deter crime and disorder.

7.10

Conclusion

7.10.1 The emerging proposals offer a significant potential to regenerate a prominently
located brownfield City Centre site which has been vacant and underutilised for a
number of years. The development would deliver a significant number of new homes
in a high quality piece of contemporary architecture. The development also offers the
opportunity to provide improved public realm and pedestrian routes that would
complement the Councils’ evolving proposals for Westgate.
7.10.2 Members are asked to note the contents of the report and the presentation, and are
invited to provide feedback, in particular, on the issues outlined below:
Do Members support the proposed scale and form of development? (7.2.6)
Page 115

15

Do Members consider that the emerging approach to landscape and public
realm is acceptable? (7.3.4)
Do Members support the approach to a car free development subject to no
adverse impacts on the highway being demonstrated? (7.4.5)

Page 116

16

AR CHIT ECTURAL DESI GN

Page 117
17

2

Telep hon e Exchange

NO

13

us
e

Shelter

55

54

52

56

53

57

TCB

Tun

2
6

n el

7

47

1
5

3

46

8

43

NE

4

38.4m

42

El Sub Sta

PA RK LA

1 to 12
14 to 100

37 .2m

48

50

MARLBORO UG H T OWERS

D
AN
TL
RU

9

51

41.1m
49

19

Telep hon e Exchange

36

Shelters

44

17

ST

1
PH

45

15

RE

ET

ET

2

38

NE

Ho

EY ST
RE

TE RRAC
E
PH

LA

ne

RUTL AN
D

R
VE

T

La

BU RL

RLEY
ST
RE
E

k

16

HA

BACK
BU

22 20
18

r
Pa

24

FO

UN

TAIN

ST

37
41

20

25

GH

21

OU

RE

ET

36
40

27
31

26
30

28
32

35
39
34
38

ET
RE
ST

23

19

24

LB

22

18

MA
R

12

S TR

16

BE

17

C OM

11

OR

14

DU N
El Sub Sta

10 15

9

17

El Sub Sta

1

29
33

Marlborough Grange

FB

EET

4

Liberty

EE

rt
ou

eC
ng
Ex
c

S TR

WE

ST

Play Area

ha

ST

nh
Ble

WE

2

WA
Y

ei m

Ho

1

us
e

Park

n
Tu

T

T ST

58

(M

)

FB

Hotel

W ES

A

l
ne

RE ET

FB

Gantry

Gantry

WE

FB

ST

GA

TE

W
EL

Leeds Internatio nal Poo l Car Park

LI
NG
TO
N

Castle Street Car Park

ST
R

T
EE

Gantry

Car Park

6

11

LIS BO

1

ET

Castle Hou se

Westgate
Centre

SKINNE R ST REET

N

BR

ID

GE

ST

RE

ET

Car Park

Coron et Hou se
120

PREAPP/21/00338

RO
N
TO
LI

NG

4

Wareho use

El Sub Sta

35

TO

Elizabeth House

W

EL

WE LLI NG

GRO VE

T ON ST
REET

116

STRE ET

Shelters

114

LB

West On e

Westgate House
10 0 to

W

EL

L

G
IN

T

ON

B

R ID

GE

ST

RE

Shelters

ET

29.3m

WE LLIN
GT ON

Mo narch Hou se

112

The
Welling ton Regent House
(PH)

ST RE ET
29.3m

Shelter
33

The Cro wne Plaza Ho tel

1a To wer Square

Gantry

3

Multistorey Car Park

1

GO

TT

W E LL

ING

10

T ON

2

P LA

CE

Wellington
Bridge

S

RO

AD

El Sub Sta

Shelter

El Sub Sta

Warehouse
1

1 to 102

Sports Court

Mo ntague

1 to 81

1 to 59

1 to 28

6

Aruba

Beringa

Elba
1 to 93

Santo rini

El
S

ub
S

1 to 38

ta

Bon aire

Canal

1 to 36

31.1m

Weir

MoP

29.9m

1 to 93

Faroe

Westray

7

1 to 57

CITY PLANS PANEL
Catalina

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100019567

Page 118

PRODUCED BY CITY DEVELOPMENT, GIS MAPPING & DATA TEAM, LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

SCALE : 1/2500
18

°

5

NG

ESS

Mu ltistorey

R GATE

LI

CR OP PE

EL

AD

W

ET

31

N STRE

Hotel

LE ST
RE

QU EE

CA ST

N ST
RE

ET

Lisbon
Sq uare

LITT
LE

Eb or
Cou rt

PROPO SED PL ANS

Page 119
19

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
Originator:

Matthew Walker

Report of the Chief Planning Officer
CITY PLANS PANEL
Date: 24th March 2022
Subject: PREAPP/21/00250 – Purpose built student accommodation and residential
development
Developer: Urbanite (Leeds) Ltd c/o QUOD Capitol, Bond Court, Leeds LS1 5SP

Electoral Wards Affected:
Little London and Riverside
Ward Members Consulted

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Narrowing the Gap

RECOMMENDATION: This report is brought to Plans Panel for information. The
Developer will present the details of the emerging scheme to allow Members to
consider and comment on the proposals at this stage.
1.0

INTRODUCTION:
This presentation is intended to inform Members at an early stage of the emerging
proposals for two Purpose Built Student Residential blocks, a new Build to Rent
residential block and associated public realm. The scheme is brought to City Plans
Panel at an early stage to allow Panel to make comments to inform progression of
proposals. The development involves a significant level of residential development
and tall buildings at a key site within the south western part of the City Centre.

Page 121

1

2.0

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS:

2.1

The subject site of this pre-application submission is the remainder of the former
Yorkshire Post Site, excluding that part which has recently been redeveloped for a
major Build to Rent (BtR) scheme (16/07088/RM). The site comprises the remaining,
undeveloped parts of the former Yorkshire Post site, which has been vacant since
2013. It has recently been used for the construction compound for the recently
constructed residential building known as ‘The Headline’.

2.2

Following the demolition of the former Yorkshire Post building in 2014 the Site has
been cleared for redevelopment (the only remaining structure on the site is the clock
tower of the Yorkshire Post building which was retained and reclad and now
accommodates a digital advertising screen). The site falls within the western part of
Leeds City Centre and is within the designated City Centre Boundary. The site is
located within the Little London and Woodhouse Ward. It is bound to the north by
Wellington Street, and to the east by Wellington Bridge Street. Its southern boundary
is consistent with the River Aire, and the western boundary with the recently
constructed ‘The Headline’ building.

2.3

A range of works to serve the entire former Yorkshire Post site, including the Site have
been undertaken as part of the first phase of the original outline consent. This includes
temporary flood risk alleviation and drainage works, including underground water
storage tank, the removal of contaminated materials; breaking up and grubbing of
former slabs and foundations across the whole site; importing site materials and
raising site levels generally; ducting for incoming services. Separate to these current
pre application proposals, the applicant is proposing the delivery of some of the flood
alleviation works in the Site’s river frontage which will form part of the Flood Alleviation
Scheme (No 2) being proposed by LCC along the River Aire, to the west (and east)
of the site.

2.4

The first reserved matters were approved for Plot D (application reference
16/07088/RM, City Plans Panel 02.02.2017) and has now been constructed for ‘The
Headline’ building, public realm and access to the site, as well as the highway works
to serve the redevelopment of the entire site. No other phases of the original outline
scheme have come forward as part of the original outline consent masterplan.

2.5

Within the SAP, the Site is identified as a Mixed-Use site, ref. MX1-24. In view of the
previous consent, recognising the Site as being capable of delivering up to 37,000
sqm of office floorspace and 204 dwellings; it is however not specifically allocated for
this specific quantum of development, nor these specific uses only.

Page 122

2

3.0

PROPOSAL:

3.1

The enquiry proposes the formation of three buildings, on a generally east/west axis.
The buildings would be constructed of precast concrete panels with folded detailing
and integrating aluminum folded perforated panels within the window details, in the
following arrangement:

3.2

Building A
This building would be closest to Wellington Street, and step via two ‘shoulders’ from
13 storeys to a maximum height of 40 storeys. This building is proposed for Purpose
Built Student Accommodation (PBSA) and would provide approximately 1,065
student units (with a mix of cluster apartments and studio apartments). The ground
and first floor of the building would contain 1,352m² flexible student ancillary spaces
to service the future residential community on the site.

3.3

Building B
This building is to the south of Building A and runs largely parallel with it and set back
13 m from it at its closest point. The proposed height is 30 storeys and again is
intended to host student accommodation in the form of 550 student units.

3.4

Building C
This building would sit at the southern part of the site, adjacent to the River Aire and
steps via two ‘shoulders’ from 12 and 14 storeys to a maximum storey height of 25.
It would provide approximately 320 apartments, including a roof top external amenity
space.

3.5

Public Realm and routes
The buildings are proposed to be set in a landscaped public realm, which extends to
almost 62% of the site’s area (excluding the road which is approximately 5% of the
site area), providing:
•
•
•
•
•

Connections to the external public highway, including two-way access (in/out) of
the Wellington Street (as provided for ‘The Headline’ building), one way entry (in
only) from Wellington Bridge Street.
Delivering the consented access route through the site.
Focusing the ground level of the development around a major public square and
creating new connections into and through the site.
Creation of a riverside amenity space, which will connect the site in an east/west
direction with other development taking place, including Wellington Place.
The creation of substantial public realm, with almost 62% of the site put over to
public open space, which will link into and complement the public open space
that has been developed as part of the ‘Headline’ scheme, to create a significant
public square.

Page 123

3

3.6

Vehicular access is proposed from Wellington Bridge Street and this will serve both
the Building C’s basement car park, and the servicing of the remainder of the site.
Access and egress are provided off Wellington Street, again for servicing (including
emergency vehicles) and egress for the basement car park in Building 3.

3.7

The Developer proposes to make two full planning applications, for the
comprehensive redevelopment of the site. The first application will be for Building A
and B and the second application for Building C. This is to enable the scheme to
proceed in a phased manner. The Developer has confirmed that a PBSA operator
(Urbanite) will be delivering the PBSA buildings, and a BtR operator will deliver
Building C.

4.0

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY:

4.1

Outline consent (LPA Ref: 14/07956/OT) was approved in 2015 for a Mixed-Use
development of residential/hotel, office and ancillary commercial use, controlled via a
series of ‘parameter plans’ over four plots. The application description was as follows:
“a mixed use scheme comprising office (B1), residential and/or hotel (C3/C1) and a
flexible range of supporting uses at ground floor (A1-A5, D1 and D2) with basement
car parking; public open space and modifications to the site access junctions”.
The application proposed four principal blocks (Blocks A-D), alongside two smaller
commercial units. Outline permission was granted, with all matters reserved other
than access, with the details of new site junctions into the site approved at outline
stage. The outline permission was subject to several non-material amendments
since, including adjustments to the approved access arrangements (ref.
19/9/00198/MOD).
The parameter plans established the layout for that scheme. The plans also set
building heights as well as parameters for public open spaces, active frontages and
connectivity through the site. The outline consent was subject to a s106 Agreement
(the Legal Agreement) with legal obligations relating to financial contributions to public
transport improvements and off-site highways works, travel planning for the
development and submission of details for public access areas for each phase.
Condition 3 of the Outline Permission required the submission of all reserved matters
applications for the remaining phases of development to be made by 27 October 2019
latest. No applications have subsequently been made, and the time period for
submitting further reserved matters applications under this Outline Consent has now
expired.

4.2

Reserved Matters application for appearance, layout, landscaping and scale for
Phase 1 (‘The Headline’ building) were considered and approved under application
16/07088/RM having been considered by City Plans Panel on 2nd February 2017.

4.3

Pre-application discussions (PREAPP/18/00636) in relation to redevelopment of the
site in 2019 from 2 no BtR buildings (419 units) of 17 and 23 storeys and a hotel of
up to 19 storeys took place in 2018/2019. The scheme attracted the Council’s support
(the City Plans Panel and Officers), for a scheme of significant scale on the majority
of the site, but ultimately did not come forward as a consequence of wind and
microclimate conditions that could not be addressed through that scheme’s design.
Page 124

4

5.0

HISTORY OF NEGOTIATIONS:

5.1

The proposals have been the subject of pre-application discussions between the
Developer, their Architects, and Local Authority Officers since June 2021. These
discussions have focused on the design and massing of the new buildings, heritage
matters including assessment of key views, highway safety and servicing,
sustainability, opportunities for landscaping and maintaining pedestrian connectivity.

6.0

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES:

6.1

Statutory Context
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the
application to be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. For the purposes of decision making at this site,
the Development Plan for Leeds currently comprises the following documents:
-

The Leeds Core Strategy (Adopted November 2014 and as amended by the
Core Strategy Selective Review 2019)
Saved Leeds Unitary Development Plan Policies (UDPR 2006)
The Natural Resources & Waste Local Plan (NRWLP 2013) including revised
policies Minerals 13 and 14 (2015).
Leeds Site Allocations Plan (SAP 2019)

-

These development plan policies are supplemented by supplementary planning
guidance and documents.
6.2

Development Plan

6.3

Leeds Core Strategy (CS)
Leeds Core Strategy sets out strategic level policies and vision to guide the delivery
of development investment decisions and the overall future of the district. The site is
located within the City Centre boundary. The most relevant policies are set out below:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Spatial Policy 1 Location and scale of development.
Spatial policy 2 hierarchy of centres and spatial approach to retailing, offices,
intensive leisure and culture
Spatial Policy 3 City Centre Development
Spatial Policy 6 Housing requirement and allocation of housing land
Spatial policy 7 distribution of housing land and allocations
Spatial Policy 8 Economic development priorities
Spatial Policy 9 Employment
Spatial Policy 11 Transport infrastructure investment priorities such as
pedestrian improvements
Policy CC1 City Centre Development
Policy CC3 Improving connectivity between the City Centre and Neighbouring
Communities.
Policy H3 Housing Density
Policy H4 Housing Mix
Policy H5 Affordable Housing
Policy H6 purpose built student housing
Policy EC2 Office development
Policy EC3 Employment use land
Policy P10 Design
Page 125
5

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
6.4

Policy P11 Heritage
Policy P12 Landscape
Policy T1 Transport management
Policy T2 Accessibility requirements and new development
Policy H9 Space Standards
Policy H10 Accessible Dwellings
Policy EN1 Carbon dioxide reduction
Policy EN2 Sustainable design and construction
Policy EN4 District heating
Policy EN5 Managing flood risk
Policy EN8 Electrical Vehicle Charging
Policy G5 Open space provision
Policy G8 Protection of important species and habitats
Policy G9 Biodiversity Improvements

Leeds Unitary Development Plan Review 2006 (UDPR) Saved Policies
Relevant Saved Policies include:
•
•
•

6.5

Policy GP5 all planning considerations
Policy BD2 / BD5 design and siting of new buildings
Policy LD1 landscaping

Leeds Natural Resources and Waste DPD
The plan sets out where land is needed to enable the City to manage resources, like
minerals, energy, waste and water over the next 15 years, and identifies specific
actions which will help use natural resources in a more efficient way.
Relevant policies include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

6.6

Air 1 management of air quality through new development
Water 1 water efficiency including sustainable drainage
Water 7 surface water run-off
Water 2 protection of water quality
Water 4 development in flood risk areas
Water 6 flood risk assessments
Land 1 contaminated land
Land 2 development and trees
Minerals 3 coal safeguarding

Relevant Supplementary Planning Documents/Guidance (SPD/SPG):
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

SPD Tall Buildings Design Guide
SPD Building for Tomorrow Today: Sustainable Design and Construction
SPD Parking
SPD Travel Plans
SPD Accessible Leeds
SPG City Centre Urban Design Strategy
HMO, Purpose-Built Student accommodation and Co-Living Amenity Standards
SPD (Draft)
Page 126

6

6.7

Site Allocations Plan
The Site Allocations Plan was adopted in July 2019. Following a statutory challenge,
Policy HG2, so far as it relates to sites which immediately before the adoption of the
SAP were within the green belt, has been remitted to the Secretary of State and is to
be treated as not adopted. All other policies within the SAP remain adopted and
should be afforded full weight.
The SAP identifies the Former Yorkshire Post site as a mixed use allocation (ref.
MX1-24) for c. 204 residential units and 37,000 sqm of office floorspace.

6.8

National Planning Policy Framework 2021 (NPPF)
The NPPF sets out the Government’s planning policies for England and how these
should be applied (para 1) and is a material consideration in planning decisions (para
2). It states that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the
achievement of sustainable development (para 7). So that sustainable development
is pursued in a positive way at the heart of the Framework is a presumption in favour
of sustainable development (paras 10-11). It states that decision makers at every
level should seek to approve applications for sustainable development where possible
(para 38).
The Framework sets policies on the following issues which are relevant to this
planning application proposal (including section numbers):
2 Achieving sustainable development (paras 7-14)
4 Decision making (paras 38 - 58)
5. delivering a sufficient supply of homes (60-80)
6 Building a strong competitive economy (81-83)
7 Ensuring the vitality of town centres (86-91)
8 Promoting healthy and safe communities (92-97)
9 Promoting sustainable transport (104-113)
11 Making effective use of land (119-125)
12 Achieving well designed places (126-135)
14 Meeting the challenge of climate change and flooding (152-169)
15 Conserving and enhancing the natural environment (174-188)
16 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment (including paras 189-208)

6.8

Other Legislation
Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (the
“Listed Building Act 1990”) reads:
“In considering whether to grant planning permission… for a development which
affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning authority…shall have special
regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses”

6.9

Consultations Undertaken
The consultations set out below relate solely to the pre-application enquiry and full
consultation with these consultees and others as required will take place at full
application stage.

6.9.1

Sustainability - Design Team

Page 127

7

The proposals have been assessed by the design team alongside the conservation
and planning teams as part of a series of pre application meetings since June 2021.
The proposals presented to members represent the latest and most settled design
solution for the site and correspond to the advice provided by the design officer at
various stages of the process with regard to architectural treatments, massing and
scale and materiality.
6.9.2

Flood Risk Management
The application site is located within Flood Zone 3 as a result of fluvial flooding from
the River Aire. However, it is noted that the site will be protected by the Leeds FAS 2
Step 1 works which are ongoing. The applicant will be required to submit a Flood Risk
Assessment to support the planning application and should agree the scope and
required flood mitigation measures with the Environment Agency. In addition, it will
also be necessary to demonstrate that the Flood risk Sequential and Exception Test
can be passed. Specific technical advice on the content and scope of documentation
to support a future planning application has been provided to the applicant.

6.9.3

Highways
There are no objections to the proposed scheme as presented subject to two points
of access being retained including a link between the two; an internal layout in
accordance with the Street design Guide SPD; and contribution to highway
improvements at the key junctions in the study area and improvements for
pedestrians and cyclists. A Transport Assessment and Travel Plan are required with
any planning application.

6.9.4

Contaminated Land
The proposed development includes vulnerable land uses. Should the development
proposal be submitted as a full planning application the contaminated land team
require a Phase 1 Desk Study Report in support of the application. Depending on the
outcome of the Phase 1 Desk Study, a Phase 2 (Site Investigation) Report and
Remediation Statement may also be required.

6.9.5

Conservation Team
The proposals have been assessed to ensure no adverse impact to the city’s heritage
assets in key views through the city. The proposals are not considered to introduce
adverse visual or setting impacts to key heritage assets.

6.9.6

Landscape Team
The Landscape Officer has commented on the following matters:
•
•
•
•

This is an area of very poor air quality due to multiple road systems and regular
standing traffic.
Green Infrastructure would improve the air quality for the benefit of the health
and wellbeing of new residents.
The formal proposals to be submitted as a planning application need to
incorporate play elements in line with advice within the NPPF and to support
the amenity of residents.
The scheme brings an opportunity for a multi-functional ‘wrap around’ public
space.
Page 128
8

•

7.0

Tree retention and new buffer planting to Wellington Bridge Street should be
encouraged.

KEY ISSUES
Members are asked to comment on the proposals and to consider/note the following
matters.

7.1

Principle of development / Housing Mix / Affordable Housing

7.1.1

The site is allocated for mixed use in the SAP (MX1-24) and the proposal for the site
is for a mixture of BtR and Student Residential accommodation, without an
office/employment component in line with the extant allocation. In respect of CS Policy
EC3 the Local Planning Authority has considered its employment supply position. The
application site does not lie within an area of shortfall and therefore the proposed
alternative land use for residential can be considered against policy EC3A(i). As of
April 2021 the supply of Office across the District is 1227660 sqm. With this in mind it
is felt that a loss of 37000 sqm from this allocation is likely to be acceptable since the
proposals would not undermine the economic objectives of the city.

7.1.2

Residential development in the City Centre is encouraged by both CS policy CC1b
and national policy. CS Policy H2 is supportive of residential development which is
accessible to the necessary amenities and facilities to support housing which would
be the case here. Therefore, this site is considered to be an appropriate location for
residential development, being sustainably situated with excellent transport links to all
the requisite amenities and facilities to support new residents. Paragraph 122 of the
NPPF makes it clear that alternative uses of sites are supported where they meet
unmet development need. These proposals would clearly go some way to meet
Leeds’ housing demand without compromising the development need for employment
land as set out above.

7.1.3

Core Strategy Policy H6B relates specifically to the provision of student housing and
is therefore relevant to this pre-application proposal. The proposals for Purpose Built
Student Accommodation are therefore assessed as follows against the criteria within
Policy H6B (represented in italics below):
i) states that development proposals should help extend the supply of student
accommodation taking pressure off the need for private housing to be used.
This proposal would assist this objective by providing 1614 purpose-built student
bedspaces which would help to take pressure off the need to use private
housing for student accommodation.
ii) states that development proposals should avoid the loss of existing housing
suitable for family occupation
This proposal would also meet this objective, because it does not propose the
loss of any family housing.
(iii) aims to avoid excessive concentrations of student accommodation which
would undermine the balance and wellbeing of communities.
Page 129

9

It is recognised that there is a concentration of student housing to the west of
the Inner Ring Road in Little Woodhouse and along Burley Street. However
this site is separated from these areas by the Inner Ring Road. The immediate
surrounding land uses around the site are mixed use, predominantly offices,
with no traditional housing, albeit there is residential use at Gotts Island on the
opposite side of the River Aire and there are planning proposals on nearby sites such
as Lisbon Street for both student accommodation and BtR residential
accommodation. It is considered that most pedestrian movementsfrom the proposal
site would generally be through a mixed use/predominantly
commercial part of the City Centre towards the Universities, and therefore the
impact on established residential communities and the character of the
immediate area is likely to be acceptable.
(iv) To avoid locations which are not easily accessible to the universities.
The site is located close to the universities, within easy walking and cycling
distance. The fourth test would be satisfied as the development is approximately a
0.5-1 mile walk to the Universities area through the City Centre
via Westgate, The Headrow and Calverley Street.
(v) is assessed below at 7.1.7.
7.1.4

With reference to the proposed BtR residential component, the site is located within
the City Centre, and within an area designated for significant regeneration and a focus
for new housing. In general, the demographic need of City Centre locations has been,
and would continue to be, the focus for younger professionals, where 1- and 2bedroom homes are more appropriate for this demographic. Residents living in rented
accommodation are typically younger households, due to the flexibility of renting and
to save to purchase a property. The planning application would be supported by a
Housing Needs Assessment in order to address Core Strategy Policy H4.
Policy H4:
‘Developments should include an appropriate mix of dwelling types and sizes to
address needs measured over the long term taking into account the nature of the
development and character of the location’
The supporting text to Table H4 sets out the preferred housing mix which reflects the
SHMA (2011). The housing mix proposed by the pre application is compared below
against Table H4:
Type

Max %

Min %

Target %

Houses

90

50

75

Proposed
Scheme
0

Flats

50

10

25

(100%)

Size

Max %

Min %

Target %

Scheme

1 bed /st

50

0

10

136 (42%)

2 bed

80

30

50

163 (51%)

3 bed

70

20

30

23 (7%)

4 bed

50

0

10

0

Page 130

10

The supporting text to this policy in Paragraph 5.2.11 states:
‘The form of development and character of area should be taken into account too. For
example, a scheme of 100% flats may be appropriate in a particular urban context’
7.1.5

With this in mind officers consider the provision of 100% flats within Building C is
deemed acceptable in principle due to the City Centre location, size of the site, density
requirements and making best use of land to provide supporting infrastructure and
public realm.

7.1.6

Whilst table H4 in the Core Strategy is only a preferred housing mix, the onus is with
the applicant to demonstrate (with evidence of housing need) why the preferred
housing mix cannot be met in the event of an application, which the applicant has
stated their intention to provide. Members are advised this scheme overprovides on
one and two bed units and underprovides on three and four bed units and justification
for this approach will be required. Members views on this particular matter are
requested at this early stage.

7.1.7

Criteria (v) of policy H6B relating to proposals for purpose-built student housing
requires that the proposed accommodation provides satisfactory internal living
accommodation in terms of daylight, outlook and juxtaposition of living rooms and
bedrooms. Core Strategy Policies CC1(b) and P10, and Saved UDPR Polices BD5
and GP5 also provide more general requirements that development should contribute
positively towards quality of life and provide a reasonable level of amenity and useable
space. The assessment of amenity is also a wider consideration of qualitative factors
including arrangement and separation of living functions (general living, sleeping,
studying, eating, cooking, food preparation, storage and circulation), usable shape,
outlook, privacy and external amenity space. Whilst the Council’s emerging policy for
student housing space requirement is draft only at the time of writing, paragraph
5.2.46 of the supporting text to Core Strategy Policy H9 states that “provision of
reasonable space standards is still important for student accommodation, and this will
need to be judged on a case by case basis”. Whilst the details of the scheme content
are still being resolved by the Developer, it is anticipated that that the following PBSA
provision is likely within buildings A and B:
•

Building A – 65 studios and 1,000 cluster apartments.

•

Building B – 494 studios and 55 cluster apartments.

7.1.8

Whilst detailed floor plans have not yet been provided as a result of the ongoing
design process with the applicant and officers, the developer team have advised that
it is their intention that all units will be constructed to NDSS / Core Strategy Policy H9
standards in the case of the BtR units, and the student accommodation will meet
LCC’s draft Planning Guidance on the size and amenity standards for student
schemes.

7.1.9

The developer team have also advised that they will be providing affordable housing
in line with Leeds City Council’s policy (Policy H5). The form of that (discount market
rent, on-site affordable housing or off-site contribution) is still to be determined and
will be confirmed at the time of making the planning application.

7.1.10 Section 106 obligations for a formal application will be required to make the
development acceptable in planning terms and would include travel plan review fee,
Sustainable Travel Plan Fund, TRO amendments, contribution to highway
improvement scheme at the assessed junctions, contribution towards cycling and
Page 131
11

pedestrian schemes, maintenance of the internal road, control of affordable housing,
greenspace, control of student occupancy and retention of public accessibility through
the site.
7.1.11 On this basis, the principle of residential/student residential uses is
considered acceptable.
7.1.12 Do members support the emerging proposals in respect of the principle of
student/residential development?
7.2

Design, Heritage and amenity considerations

7.2.1

The proposal would be visible in longer views around the City, and the applicant has
prepared a townscape visual impact assessment to demonstrate key views in long,
medium and near distance views from identified locations. In terms of the proposed
building heights and massing, the site falls in an area identified in the Council’s
adopted Tall Buildings Strategy SPD as being suitable for taller buildings, and where
subject to detailed design, heritage and other development management
considerations tall buildings could be supported. Therefore, subject to layout
considerations relating to outlook, privacy, daylight and sunlight, wind, skyline
composition and heritage impacts, in principle the proposed range of building heights
of 25-40 storeys are considered by officers to be acceptable in this location which is
an emerging environment for tall buildings.

7.2.2

Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states
that decision makers should give considerable importance and weight to the
desirability of preserving the setting of listed buildings. The proposals as presented
have been the subject of a number of detailed design meetings including input from
the Conservation Team and a series of meetings and assessments around the impact
of the proposed developments have taken place as part of the enquiry process to
establish what visual impacts and potential harm to the setting of heritage assets
could occur as a result of the proposed development.

7.2.3

The analysis has established the proposed development would not be visible from
key views from Millennium Square, St Paul’s Street, Park Place and York Place within
the Conservation Area. 22 further views have been analysed, taking into account any
visual impacts in both the existing scenario and scenario where consented
development could manifest. Of the views assessed the key areas of potential impact
are as follows:

7.2.4

Park Square
Building A would be visible from the eastern edge of Park Square, however the
building would be set back a substantial distance from the roofline of the square in
views westward and would have a kinetic relationship to the listed buildings in the
square and would not dominate in terms of height. The proposed materiality and tone
of Building A would tie in with the brick/terracotta vernacular of the group heritage
asset of the square and its buildings and the relationship to Park Square is considered
acceptable in this regard.

7.2.5

View from Cookridge Street
This view takes in the presence of building A beyond buildings along the southern
edge of Westgate. Again, it is considered that as a result of the application site’s
generous distance from Westgate the tower would be seen as a building in the
Page 132
12

backdrop rather than a prominent building that dominates the lower scale environment
of Westgate and around the Town Hall.
7.2.6

View from City Square towards West Street / Wellington Street
Building A would be visible in long views from City Square. As part of the design
evolution of the scheme, the taller element of Building A has been set back into the
site to reduce massing levels close to the pedestrian environment to a more human
scale and avoid over domination of the public environment. As a result of this design
change, the taller 40 storey element of building A sits comfortably alongside
surrounding buildings on Wellington Street and provides only a limited additional
massing above the height of surrounding buildings when viewed from City Square in
the setting of the Grade II Majestic. From Wellington Street Building B becomes visible
from the area approximately outside Central Square on Wellington Street, however
again this building would be of limited height above the surrounding buildings and
would not dominate. Building A becomes more visually prominent however it provides
a neat end stop to the vista along Wellington Street and a point of height, slender in
form rather than slab like and over dominant.

7.2.7

Hanover Square
The location of Building A in reference to the roofline of buildings around the southern
edge of Hanover Square results in the building appearing over the top of more modern
building such as Park Lane College and Marlbrough Towers as opposed to clearly
breaking the roofline of residential scale buildings around the southern edge of the
square. In the event that surrounding consented development comes forward, the
form of Building A would be read as part of a conglomerate of taller buildings. In this
regard and in both scenarios officers are satisfied that the proposals would not
adversely impact the setting of the square as an important group heritage asset.

7.2.8

Woodhouse Square
From within woodhouse Square, the key view analysis has demonstrated that towers
A and B would be emergent in the south western corner of the square but would read
as buildings in the backdrop alongside Marlborough Towers which, by way of
perspective would appear to be of a similar height to the new buildings. In this regard,
the two visible towers are not considered to adversely break the roofline of buildings
around the southern periphery of the square and the impact is considered acceptable.

7.2.9

In architectural terms, the three buildings would use a combination of verticality,
unifying language and elements of depth and texture to create forms which although
tall appear ordered with proportionate quantities of solid and void, regularity and
consistency of vertical and horizontal proportions. The materials palate and use of
profiled toned panels as secondary and tertiary elements would not compete with the
primary visual strength of the vertical piers providing that colour and tone are given
due consideration in the final design and carefully controlled through conditions at a
formal application stage. The tonality of the three buildings is still under discussion
however it is agreed that the middle of the three buildings (Building B) should act as
a visual mediator between buildings A and C to give all three buildings clear definition
from one another, whilst maintaining the use of a tonal palette that pays homage to
the tonality of buildings in the city centre and most notably the Conservation Area.

7.2.10 Window to window distances within the proposed layout range from 18-26 metres
approximately, which would provide adequate levels of distance such that a
Page 133
13

reasonable level of privacy is maintained. The closest point between buildings A and
B is shown as approximately 11 metres, however this direct distance measurement
would be from communal space within building A onto a stairwell / lift enclosure within
Building B and would not therefore produce a harmful impact in terms of overlooking
of resident dwelling spaces.
7.2.10 Do Members support the emerging design, scale and form?
7.2

Landscaping proposals

7.2.1

The enquiry is supported by indicative landscape proposals which seek to provide a
high-quality area of public realm equating to approximately 1400 sqm. Major
landscaping is proposed on the western boundary of the site, where the site adjoins
Wellington Bridge Street, and this will include a range of wind mitigation measures,
some of which are proposed to form part of the public arts strategy on the site. It is
proposed that the existing clock tower on the site, which is a legacy of the former
Yorkshire Post use of the site, will be demolished and “reinvented” as a major piece
of public art which will also act as wind mitigation.

7.2.2

The hard and soft landscape arrangements are subdivided into 4 ‘character areas’
comprising the introduction of a ‘Micro Urban Forest’ at approximately 830sqm (area
1) leading onto a riverside walkway area (area 2) intended to link up to the public
realm adjacent to the riverside aspect of ‘The Headline’ and allow for onward
connections into the adjacent MEPC Wellington Place Phase 2 site. The third area
(The Thread and River Park) would link Wellington Bridge Street to the centre of the
site and provides an east-west axis route from buildings A and B to the riverside
walkway. The final of the four areas is ‘The Square’ and is essentially a public square
arrangement to the west of building A providing an area of communal outdoor space
for residents and spill out space for pop up events. The two key open spaces within
the layout are considered to be generously proportioned, with the area on the
Riverside extending to circa 120 m in length x 12 m at its widest (and 10 m at its
narrowest) with the public realm within the heart of the site extending to 44 m x 65 m.

7.2.3

The landscaping proposals are evolving at the time of this report and are provided as
information only at this stage. Notwithstanding, the applicant is proposing a layout
which is intended to serve a number of functions including informal play, functional
lawn spaces, the introduction of biophilic structures and sculptures and a Micro Forest
at the site’s northern edge adjacent to the riverside, with the intention of promoting
biodiversity, insect and animal species, promote carbon sequestering and reduce
noise and pollutants from the adjacent highway. The layout as provided with the
enquiry and to be presented to members would provide new pedestrian routes and
accessible spaces and complete a safe pedestrian route starting at Whitehall Road
via the MEPC site up to Wellington Bridge Street/Wellington Street which is
considered positive in terms of the wider placemaking objectives in this part of the city
centre.

7.2.4

Do members support the proposed emerging approach to landscaping and
pedestrian connectivity?

7.3

Transportation Considerations

7.3.1

The Site is situated in a highly sustainable location. Leeds Rail Station is only 10
minutes’ walk, and the heart of the City Centre is similarly within easy walking
distance. Wellington Street and Wellington Bridge Street are main arterial routes into
the City Centre and benefit from excellent public transport links. The nearest bus stops
Page 134
14

are located approximately 160m east along Wellington Street and at the Wellington
Bridge Street site frontage. There is also easy walking access to leisure and retail
services and widespread on street parking controls which are likely to mitigate against
adverse impacts on the highway from displaced parking. As such the proposals
provide minimal levels of on site car parking (16 spaces) - Instead the applicant has
stated their intention in principle to provide high levels of cycle parking provision which
reflect the sustainable location of the site and the move towards transportation
provision that more neatly fits with the Climate Emergency. Full details of sustainable
transportation measures will be required for consideration at the full application stage.
7.3.2

The strategic aim of the masterplan is to improve the public realm linking A65 Kirkstall
Road to the riverside and beyond to sites due south of the enquiry site to enhance the
wider connectivity. The submitted details for this enquiry indicate pedestrian routes
through the new site arrangement to allow access from public transport routes to the
River Aire and Wellington Place to the south east which is considered positive.

7.3.3

It has been previously agreed for the first phase of development, the internal road
network need not be adopted unless the developer decides otherwise. Sufficient
assurance will be required through the S106 Agreement that the developer and its
successors will retain liability for maintenance in perpetuity. The applicant has
confirmed that maintenance would be through a management company. A
contribution is required towards the Council’s proposed improvements to the cycle
route along the Wellington Bridge Street linking into the section that has been
delivered at the site frontage. In addition, an extension of the cycle route across the
access into the site at Wellington Bridge Street is required, to be delivered through a
future s278 agreement.

7.3.4

Two internal laybys are proposed one east of plot A near the Wellington Street access,
which has already been implemented and the other is proposed south of plot B; these
will be used for the servicing, delivery and pick up/drop off associated with the
development. Suitable bin storage provision should be provided on the site and
ensure that the maximum carry distances are not exceeded and given the emerging
status of the proposed design and layout of the site, these are matters which will be
more fully considered at the formal application stage.

7.3.5

The previous consent was supported by a Transport Assessment (TA) and whilst it
may be the case that the revised proposals generate reduced traffic numbers, the
scale of development requires that a TA is provided. Traffic impact assessments at
the West Street gyratory and Armley Gyratory will be required for consideration as
part of a formal application. The previous outline consent provided a modest
contribution towards capacity improvements to the adjacent junction, a contribution to
highway improvements is still expected to be required as a result of any increased trip
generation resulting from the development. Improvements to local Traffic Regulation
Orders will be necessary to manage on-street parking and prevent parking overspill
in the local area.

7.3.6

A Travel Plan will also be required to support a planning application and associated
measures controlled via a section 106 agreement. A Construction Management Plan
will be controlled through any planning application. Full details of cycle provision and
sustainable transport measures will be required for consideration as part of a full
application once the detailed design of buildings is finalised.

7.3.7

With the exception of drop-off areas for taxis and servicing, and the provision of car
club bays, there is proposed to be no surface-level car parking. There would be no
car parking associated with the student use, whilst the Build to Rent building will
Page 135
15

contain in the order of 16 car parking spaces at basement. All spaces are intended
to be provided with electric vehicle charging points in line with Core Strategy Policy
EN8.
7.3.8

Do Members support the emerging approach to car parking provision?

7.4

Sustainability and Climate Change

7.4.1

Members will be aware that the Council has declared a Climate Emergency. Existing
planning policies seek to address the issue of climate change by ensuring that
development proposals incorporate measures to reduce the impact of non-renewable
resources.

7.4.2

Although at an early and emerging stage the proposals aim to meet the requirements
of planning policies EN1 and EN2 to reduce total predicted carbon dioxide emissions
(to achieve 20% less than the Building Regulations Target Emission Rate and provide
a minimum of 10% of the predicted energy needs of the development from low carbon
energy). Full details of the measures that will be employed to address sustainability
will come forward as part of any subsequent planning application, such that
sustainability measures will be integrated into the detailed design.
The applicant has advised that the buildings are proposed to be constructed of the
highest environmental standards, and to minimise carbon consumption wherever
possible. The following construction and operational measures are proposed to be
incorporated into the buildings:
•

•

•

7.5

In line with Leeds Core Strategy EN1 total predicted carbon dioxide emissions
will be reduced to exceed the minimum of 20% less than the Building
Regulations Target Emission Rate and the minimum of 10% of the predicted
energy needs of the development will be provided from low carbon energy.
In line with Leeds Core Strategy EN4 the viability of a connection to the Leeds
PIPES district heating network will be explored. Initial dialogue has been made
with Peter Midgley, LCC Project Officer for Sustainable Energy and Air Quality.
If a connection is not possible or viable a centralised communal air source heat
pumps providing a low carbon source for part of the heating demand and 100%
of the hot water demand will be addressed.
The building is currently being energy modelled using the computer modelling
package EDSL TAS Part L 2013 which is based on BRE’s standard calculation
tool and uses a dynamic simulation method for checking compliance in order
to determine the target and predicted carbon emissions.

Biodiversity (for further information)
Policy designations within and close to the site include Leeds Habitat Network, Green
Space, Strategic Green Infrastructure and sites of ecological/geological importance.
In this location, there is a need to achieve a Biodiversity Net Gain which will require
addressing in the subsequent Ecological impact Assessment with full Biodiversity
Metric calculations to be provided at full application stage.

7.6

Wind and Microclimate Considerations
The Developer’s Design Team have engaged at an early stage with a wind engineer
to determine the design, massing and mitigation necessary to ensure acceptable wind
conditions. At the time of this report, initial scoping information has been provided
Page 136
16

which will go on to form the basis of a wind impact assessment to be submitted with
a full planning application.
8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

Members are asked to note the contents of the report and the presentation. In
addition, Members are invited to provide feedback in response to the following key
questions asked in the report above and as follows:
Do members support the emerging proposals in respect of the principle
of student/residential development?
Do members support the proposed emerging approach to landscaping and
pedestrian connectivity?
Do Members support the emerging approach to car parking provision?

Background Papers: PREAPP/21/00250

Page 137

17

OR
LB
MA
R

DU N

C OM

BE

2

El Sub Sta

S TR

EET

4

Liberty

11

1

EE

eC
ng
ha

ST
WE

Ex
c

S TR

ou

WA
Y

ei m
nh
Ble

ST

2

WE

Play Area

rt

Ho

us
e

Park

T
Hotel

W ES

T ST

RE ET

FB

Gantry

Gantry

WE

FB

ST

GA

TE

W
EL
LI
NG
TO

Castle Street Car Park

N
ST
R

Gantry

T
EE

Casino

Car Park

City Gate

6

11

Eb or
Cou rt

Lisbon
Sq uare
LIS BO
31

1

N STRE
ET

Hotel

Football Centre

NG

N

BR

ID

GE

ST

RE

El Sub Sta

35

TO

CR OP PE

LI

ET

120

116

GRO VE

LI

NG

4

Wareho use

TO

N

RO

AD

EL

R GATE

SKINNE R ST REET
W

El Sub Sta

W

EL

WE LLI NG

W

EL

N
LI

GT

ON

ID
BR

GE

ST

RE

T ON ST
REET

STRE ET
LB

Shelters

Shelters

ET

29.3m

WE LLIN
GT ON

ST RE ET

Shelter

The Cro wne Plaza Ho tel

ire

Gantry

Warehouse

Multistorey Car Park

GO

TT

Gantry

W E LL

ING

10

T ON

P LA

CE

Wellington
Bridge

2

rA

1

Ri
ve

S

RO

AD

El Sub Sta

PREAPP/21/00250
El Sub Sta

Shelter

Stone

Warehouse
1

1 to 102

Sports Court

Mo ntague
Gantry
1 to 81

1 to 59

Aruba

GO

31
.7

SR

Elba

OA

1 to 93

D

Santo rini

m

Garage

Mo
ori
n

1a

The Half Roundhouse

Beringa

1 to 28

TT

1

gP
os
ts

El
S

ub
S

1 to 38

ta

Bon aire

Canal

1 to 36

G

RA

31.1m

IN

G

ER

Weir
St
A

S

W

AY

6

El Sub Sta

nn
s In
gL
oc
k

1 to 93

Faroe

Westray

MoP

1 to 57

Catalina

FB

29.0m
8

El Sub Sta

rd
Wa

y
Bd

29.0m

uc t

31.1m

ed

LL

El Sub Sta

Whitehall Waterfron t
1 to 194

Riversid e West

62

32.3m

HA

to

ay
ilw
Ra

TE

AD

29

tl
an

28

Monk Bridge

HI

1 to

W

RO

l
te
Ho

Viad

CITY PLANS PANEL
m
Dis

© Crown copyright and database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey 100019567

Page 138

PRODUCED BY CITY DEVELOPMENT, GIS MAPPING & DATA TEAM, LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

SCALE : 1/2500
18

°

